
 
 

Council Excellence Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Wednesday, 1 July 2009 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 22) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the following Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees –  
 

• Community and Customer Engagement 8 April 2009 

• Corporate Services 2 and 16 April 2009 

• Finance and Best Value 24 March 2009 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  
 
 The Committee is requested to consider the appointment of a vice-

chair for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 23 - 26) 
 
 Attached for information and guidance. 

 

Public Document Pack



5. EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENTS  
 
 Presentation by Jacqui Cross (Equality and Diversity Officer), Ged 

Smyth (NRAC Auditor) and Steve Talbot (Staff Development Manager) 
 
Recognising People’s Different Needs through the Use of Equality 
Impact Assessments 
 

6. FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT (Pages 27 - 30) 
 
7. PROJECTED BUDGET 2010 - 2011 (Pages 31 - 36) 
 
8. BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2011 - 2014 (Pages 37 - 40) 
 
9. GENERAL FINANCIAL MATTERS (Pages 41 - 52) 
 
10. MEMBERS FINANCE TRAINING (Pages 53 - 54) 
 
11. RISK AND RETURN - ICELANDIC BANKS (Pages 55 - 62) 
 
12. SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
 The views of the Committee are requested concerning topics to be 

included in this year's scrutiny work programme. 
 

13. CO-OPTED MEMBERSHIP  
 
 All of the new overview and scrutiny committees are being asked to 

consider if they wish to extend or initiate co-opted membership. 
 

14. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC  

 
 The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 

the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information. 
 
RECOMMENDED –  
 
That in accordance with section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following items of business, on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the relevant 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to that Act. 
 

15. COMPUTER EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE (Pages 63 - 64) 
 
16. SUN MICROSYSTEMS MAINTENANCE (Pages 65 - 68) 
 
17. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



���������	
��	������
�	
��
�
�
��	
��
���
�	
��	��������	�������

	

�
���������	�
���
��������

�
�
������� ���������
� ��������������
��

�
� ���������
�� ���
�����
��

��������
��� ����
�

��!����
����
��"�����
�

#�������� ���������
� �$�%�&��������������'�����(�����
�

�����)���� ���������
� ���*�����
�

��
�

�
++� �
��
�
�����	��	���
�
����
���	����		

�
,��� � -�
���'�������  ������&�
����.�������������
�&�����
��������������
������
�
��
�/������������
������������������&����������� ���������)��������	��'���	���������
��
������������������������
���'����������
���0��,����&�
��
� ����������������������������
�����
�	� ��
������ ��� ��
�)
���� 1
� �'� ����2(�
(��&�������
�������
�����
��3����	�
&�����
� ����� &�
�� ��-/���� ��� �� ��
��� &���� ��� ����������� &���� ���� ��� � ��� -��
�������
������	��'���	���������
�����������������������
���'�����&������)��

��)� ���0�
�
���������
����
�����
�������
������
�/�������� ����
���� ��� 
��������'� ������+�� �%�����
"�����)�����&������-��(�
�����'��� �-���)����
�(����������
�0�
�
���������
�� "����� ���� %�&��� �����
��� ��
������ ����
����� ��� 
������� �'�  ������ +��
�%�����"�����)�����&������-�� (�
�����'� ����
� � -�
������'� ���� �����������
(���(��
��
����
)����������&�����&������
��������'� �����������������
�0���
�

+4� �����
�		
�
$�� 
������� �'�  ������ ��	� ������ � 5����)��	� "���� �'� 6���'���	� 3�(������ ����
����� �
� ��
(����	� ��'�
 ��� ����  �����)� ����� ��� &����� -�� ������ ��� 
���
�� ��� ��
'���
��2(�
(��&�������
��������  �����������(���� ������������2��7����������0�
�
$�� 
������� �'�  ������ +�	� ,
����� � ���	� �����
� ��  ������ 8�)�)� ���� 2''���
	�
�����)����� ��� ���� ��  ������ ����� &���� ���� ����
��
�� �'� ���� "���� �'� ������	� �&��
����
� ������ �9������� )
����� ���� ���� -���� ��(����� ��� ����  �����)� ��� �
�)�������
��������0�	
	
��������	�	���	� !"#��	�$	#��	%&�� �"�	���# !'(	����	�!	)	��*&"+&,(	-../(	*�	
&�0� ���	+�	+	0�&&�0#	&�0�&�1	
�
�
�
�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



+:� ���	�
���
	�	
�
��
����	
��	�
����
��
�����		
�
,��� #������ ����'� 8;�����(�� <� #�
����
� �'� ��
��
���� ��
(����� �
�������� �� 
���
��
&���������-�����������
���-����-��������1����
��	�����	�
�(��&��)������������'�����
=>���#�����?����� �0�
�
,���=>���#�����?��
��������(��(�������������������'�'�����(�����'�
 ��'���
��������
��
-��)����)0�,����������������.�����������
�������������
���'�
� �0�5�����)������������
����� ����� �
������ -���'����� ���� ��  ������ -�� ���-���)� ����������� ��
(����� ��� -��
����(�
��� ��� ������ ��  �������	� -�� ��(��(��)� 
��������� ��� ���������  �.��)� ���� -��
���-���)� 
��������� ��� ��(�� �� )
����
� ����
�������)� �'� ���� ������ �'� ��
(����� ����
������������������0� $������������
�(���������
� �����&������������������ �������)�����
���
���������������
��������������������������(�
���
(���������
���)��0��
�
���������������
��	�����������)
����'�
�����'�����)����-�� �������������@�A�	����
&�����&���@��	������
��
���5�
� �&���� ���� ��������������'� �������������� @��	����
�����'�
�����>�������
��� ������������2���
�������?����
��� ���0�
�
3��������)� ��� �� -�
�?� ��  ����� ,
����� � ���� ��'�
 ��� ����  �����)� ����� ����
�
���5�
� �����
�?�!
����&�����-����(��(���������������������������
(�����'�
������
���������&�9����������
��'�
�����<1��������������'�=>���#�����?0��������������&�����
��.�������� '
� ����� �����)���	������&������ 
���
��)���)� �����-����� �������� -�
0�
,��
��&�����-�� '���-��.� ��� ������  ������ �������
�� 
���������&�
���&�
���'� ����
�������������
(������
�(����������
�������'�=>���#�����?0��
�
��������	2	��+#	#��	&�%�&#	*�	!�#��1	
�

+A� �����
�
����
	�
�����
��
	
��
���
��	-..3	�	4
�
����	�
����
		
�
,��� #�
����
� �'� 5������� �
�������� �� 
���
�� &����� ��������� ���� �� �
������(��
��
'�
 ����������� ���� ������ 
�(��&� �
������ '�
� ����6���'���� ��
(���� '�
� ���
0�
,���6���'������
(��������-���������������� =8;�������?�&���������
���'�40�,����&���
����'���������
���
�������)��'����������)���&�
�� �����������������������
������'
� �
��
������
��
���'�

��)�
�������-������'
� �����6���'���5
����$�������
�����������������
��  ������� ��������)� ���� ���
��������� �'� *��� %����� �'� 8�9��
�� �*%28�0� ,���� &���

����������-���� ����=��
��
�����?������������������''�
���������
 ���'������������'����	�
������������  �������������
�������)���)�����������)
����'�����)��������.����� �����
���������)��&�����.���������(��������������������� ��0�
�
��������	2	��+#	#��	&�%�&#	*�	!�#��1	
�

+B� ���
��
	�
�
���
��	��
�	-../�5.		
�
,���#�
����
��'�5���������- ������ ����5�������#���
� ��������� '�
�����<1��&�����
���� ���� ��&� ���� 5������� #���
� ���� &����� ����
�-���� ��� ���� �(�
���� ����(�
�� �'�
���������� �������
��
������������������;���'�������
��
��������0��
�
,���
���
����������������
���)�����
��������'�����5�������#���
� ���������
�(���������
���.�����������
��
�����������������
��
������������	�������'���)�������
)���	���������
��
������)��'�������
�/�����&�����&���������
 ���������� ����������
����
���0�
�

Page 2



������ �5����)��	�"�����'�6���'���	�3�(��������������� �
���
(����	�
���������
�����  �����'
� ��� -�
�������(�
������'�������������������	���������)���
'�
 �����
��������
�	���(��)����
)��������
��.� ���)� ���0�
�
��������	2	��+#	#��	&�%�&#	*�	!�#��1	
�

+
� ��

���	��	������
����	6���7	�
8�
���		
�
,���#�
����
� �'� 5������� �
�������� �� 
���
�� &����� ��������� ���� �
�������)� ���� ����
����
���'�5
���� ��'�$�'�
 ������
�9������
����(���-�������������0�
��
,����� -�
��'�
�9�������������
�������(�
����������4����
��'
� �1+:�������:����:+
�
������
�����������B���
��	���������
������-����+B+0�3�9������
�'�������-������������
���������'����������'�
�����6�
��)�����&������������������&�
������
������������������
��
���)���������3�(��&	�����
�����'������
����''	����������
�?��;�����������,
�� �
��
3�(�
�� 5���-���� ���-� ������
����C� ����  �
�� )��-��� ������� ����� ��� ��'�)��
���)�
�����
��	��������������������������������'�� �����
���
����0�
�
,��
��&���������&������������)������������
�'������'�
 ���������
�9�����
��������)����
���
�� &��� �� ��)��� �;� ������ ��� ��� ��0� ,��
�� &��� ����������� ������ &������ ����
��)������������
�'����
�9�����
��&���-��� ��
���������
�(�;������C���

��������������
��
�'����������������&��
�9�����
��������������)����������� �������'�
��0�
�
3��������)� ����� -�
�?� ��  ����	� D���� ��

��	� $�'�
 ����������)�
	� �;��������
&���� (�;������� 
�9������ ���
�� ���� -���� ���� ���� ��
�� �������� ��� &����� ����
��
��
������
.����)�,�� �&�
��)�(�����(�������������'�52$�
�9�����0�
�
�� -�
����))��������������&�����-�����'��������(����-
��.��&���'�
�9���������������
������-�� �����
���-���������
��
�����'���
���(�
(��&�������
��������  �����0�
�
��������	2	��+#	#��	&�%�&#	*�	!�#��1	
�

+�� ���
�	�������	
����
��
		
�
����������
� �
�����
�	� ��(��)� �
�(������� �����
��� �� �
�/�������� ����
���	� ��'�� ����
 �����)��������.������
��������������������
�)�
���)������ ����
0��
�
,��� #�
����
� �'� 5������� �
�������� �� 
���
�� �������)� ���� ��  ������ ��� ���� %�����
"�����)� ����&����� �%"��� &����� ���� ��  ������ ����������� ��� 1� ��
��� ���
0� ,���
���� ��&���-���)��������'������� ������
��������

��������������'�
 �������(��&��'�
�
���������
�� ����������� ����	� ����
�
�� ��� ���� #���
� ���� '�
� ��
.� ���� ��������?�
�#���� �������� (��&	� ���� ���� �� &���  �
�� �� ���;� ��� �� ������
� ����� �
�)�������
�����������0�
�
������ �5����)��	�"�����'�6���'���	�3�(��������������� �
���
(����	�
���������
�����  �����'
� ��� -�
������������
�������'�%"�������

��0��
�
��������	2	��+#	#��	&�%�&#	*�	!�#��1	
�
�
�
�

Page 3



4�� 
��	���
�	���
��	4����
��	
�����
�	4�	��
	��
��		
�
3��������)� ��� �� ��  ���� '
� � ���������
� �
�����
�	� ������ � 5����)��	� "���� �'�
6���'���	�3�(��������������� �
���
(����	��������������&�������.����������������'�
���&�
��������'�
����������
��&����$,���
(����0�
�
��� ���&������������ �����)��'����� ������������
���������
�����.������� ������ -�
��
�����''���
��'�
�����
�����
�-�����������&�
.��(�
�������������
0�
�
�

Page 4



����������	��
���	��
��
�����
��
	�����
������������

�
�������	
����
���������

�
��������� ����������� �����������������

�
� ������������ ���������

����� �����
!�"����
�

��#����$����
��!����	�
�

%�
������ ������������ &�#'��������
������(���)�������
�

�
*�� ����������
	�����
����	��������������

�
)�' ����$������+���������������$����������	�����
�����������
��,�������� ����������
��������������$������	� ���'������� ���������������
� �(���
� ����������� ���'�����������
$�������	�$���-�)�' ����$������'��������������	��������������������
�
�����������

������
�� ./� �(� ���� 01��1��$� ���� #������	� ���������� 2����
� $������� ���	� $����
�� ,���������
���	�$��
���������������$������	����'������� ����������������
��(���
����
���������������������������������(�����$��

�����������'���-�
�
3��������������������$����'���-�
�

*4� ��
���	��
�
)�' ���� $���� ��5������� ��� �����1�� ����'������� �(� ����'������� �(� ���� ���
������
#��1�����01��1��$�����#������	���''��������������*�)����
�����-�
�
�������������������� ����� ��� ���
�����(�'������*.
� ������
������
���(� ����
���' ��
�
���� (����� ���������  �� '�1��� ��� ���  ���'��� ���� ������� ��������
� ���� 
������
��
$���������������
�6��)�' ������������7--8�
��
�������������������� !"#�����$����� ���!"%�������"�&���'(�)�*++,�-���..'�����
�����(�''�(��'�(�'�)��#-/�(���������� �"� �"���$� !"#���&01�
�

*9� �	�� ��� �����	� �
���� ���� ��2������
� ��� �

�	��2������ �����	�
����3����4��
�
�����$����������''�����:����5�����������������'��������'������*.���(�����(�������
����
��� ����2���������� �(� ;�1���������	���$�������
� ����%�������� �(� ��$
�&2�����������
)�����'������ '�������� ��
���
�$��������� ��������������� 	� ��������(�0((����:��
)�����'�������'
�#�����������������������2��+�)�����'������''������-�
�
��� ���� ��5����� �(� ���� �����
� ��� �'������ 1������� �(� ���� ��
���
� $����� $���  �����
����������� 	��� �����������
���
�$�����������������������''�����-������������������
��������

������$���� ������
���� ��� ����� �����

��������$�������(������	���' �����
����������
����$����������
�������<������-�#����������������������'������������� ��

Public Document Pack

Page 5



��,������� �(� ������''������ ����������� ��� ������''������������� ����� ����'�������
���������������-�
�
����%���������
���������(�����	����(��������������������������������$�����

	� ���
��+����� �������	�����������1����������'-�����'������1��������(�������
�������� ����
����������� ��� ���� �� ����� $����� ���+� �������� �(� ��''����� '����  	�  ���� ����
#�����������������������2��+�)�����'������''���������� ������'���������������� ���
����$��+-�
�
���� %�������� ����� �=
������� ���� ��������� �(� ���� ��
���-� ���� 2���������� �(�
;�1���������	� ��$���� ���� ����� �62;��8�� ��1������ ��$� 
� ����  ������ �����
���1���������'������-�"�������������
� ��+�������� ������������������'������������������
���1���������$��������������$����������
� �������������(�������
��
�����(�
��1�������
����������������'�����
��1���������������-�
�
����0((�����(�����#��1�����������''����������60#�8��$������
���� ���(����1���������
�����
���������(�2;��-�����������������������������������0#��������������� ��������
���������(�2;���������������� ���������� ,�����(��� ���
�������� 	� ����0#��������	�
���4� ���� ���	� ���>-� �����������:�� ���� �(� 2;���$��� ����� ���� �� ,���� �(� �� �������
��1��$� 	�����;��������������#������-��0����(���������''�����������(��������1��$�$���
����� ���� �������:�� �����	� ���� ����������� ��� ���� ���� �(� 2;���  �� �
�����-� ����
;����������������1��$�$����

���������������1�������
���-�
�
���������� ����'������ ���� ��� ���� �����.��'����������������������(����1���������

�$���� 	������������������-�����&�'��0((������������������������������������������
��� ���������(�2;���
�$���� 	�
� ���������������� �������	�����-�?�(���������	� ������
���� ��������������������(�'����
��������(������� ,�����(����1����������������'����-�
���� &�'�� 0((���� ���� 
� ������� ��� ���� $� ����� �� ����'���� ��� ��'�� �(� ����
'�������
���������������$����

���������������
���-�
�
���������������������������������1��������������

����������(����'��������1��	�������
���� 
������� �(� 2;��� ���
� ��� ���� 	���� ���>@/
� ���� �������� ���� �������� 9*�
��������������-� ������ �������� ��� ������ ��1����������  	� ���� "������ ����A�������
B���1��������'��4C������������������#������������'����-����������(�������
�$����
���� ��������� ��� ������ ������� ��� ���+��� ������ �������� ���� ��� � ����� ������ ������� ���
���+��� ����A�������  ���1����-� ���� �������� ���� ����� ���1��������� �1������� ���
��'������ ������ �������� ���� ���� ���� ���� ��1���  ���� ����������-� � ;�� ��'�� ������
���1��������� �1������� � �������  	� ���� �������� ������ 2;��� ����  ���� �����  	� ����

�������������������'��������1�������-�
�
���� �����0#�����
���������
��������������������' ����(� ����''������������������
%�������������������������������+�������'
��'������������-�����;����������������1��$�
���������������(��������' ����(�������(����'
��1�'��������������������������� ����
�������$���������� ������(�������������(��������������:��
����	�����
����������������
�����(�
�$����������2;������ ���
�����-��������(��
����	�$����� ������������� 	�
�� �����������
���
�����-�
�
2��
������� ��� ��''����� (��'�'�' ���
� ����%�������� ����� ����� ������������� (��'�
����0#��$��� ����� ������������ �((�����
� �(�$��'� ������$���� ���	� >
� �������  �� �(� ��
������� �	����������1����������$����� ����

	���������(	�������������	��(��������������
(��'�����%�
���'�����(�2�����������-�&��$�����������������������������''����������
�������(��

����'��������������'�������������������-�

Page 6



�
�����
����������$�������1������������������1����'�������(����1������������$���������
 ����1����� 	�2;��� ���������$����(������������������'�+�������,�1������������(���
�����
����������$��������
���������+-�;�����
�����(�����(�����������%��������������������
���$�������������������������
�����������������1�������1�����������������$�����'������
(�������$���������������1������������������1����� ���1�����-�
�
)�' ���� ���������� ���� ����� ��� ���+� ��� ���� ������� �����'���(� ��1���� ���1���������
$����(����������������' ����(�
�������������������1������������������' ����(�������
	�������/@��-�������(������������������� ����������������� ������ (��� �����������:��
������������ ����� ����-�����%�������� ������� ��������$����� ������$���� ������''������
�������������
����������������0#����������������
����	���:��(������-�
�
��'�' ����������������������(�������������������	����(��������� ����	�$�������������
��������������������((���	���������������-��
�
;��$���'�1��� 	������������)���"����������������� 	������������!����	
������D�
�
6�� ����� ����5������� ������������ ���� (���������(� ���� ;�������������� ��
���� (����$����
��� (��'�����(���������(� ����0#����
�������� ������ ����''��������������(�������� ��

������������'
��'�����������'�������(�������	-8�
�
����'������$���
����������������>���-�
�
;��$���'�1��� 	�������������������������������� 	������������)���"���
������D�
�
6�� ��
���� �� ������� ��� ����
������	� ��
����'���
��������	���''�����
��������������
 ����� ��� ����� ���� ��''������'�	�'������� ���� ���� �(� ����2;���
�$���� ���� �������
������ ���
���� ��� ���� 
��
��������� �

��������-����� ��
���
� $����� $����� ����� ��(��'�
�0)�
������������
�

•� ��	� �������� ��� �	���'�� ���� 
��������� ���� ��� 
����� ��� ����� ��������	� ���
'�������������������������

��1�����������(�2;���
�$���-��

•� ��	�������������
���(���2;���
�$�����������������	��'
��	��$���������������
��	���1�����������-��

•� ������ '�' ���� �(� ���((� ��� ����� ��������	� $��� ��1�� ���� 
�$��� ��� ������
��������������(��������(�2;��-��

•� ������������(��������((�$�������� �������������������������(�2;��-��

•� ������������(��������((�$�������� �������

�	�(������������(�2;��-��

•� ���(��'�������(����((�����������������������((���1��1���$����2;������������������
������
��������-��

•� <=
����������(������	
����(����'���(���$������������������	��������������������
���� �(� 2;��� 
�$���� (��� ��1������������ ��� ���� 	���� ,���� ������ ���� ���� 	����
 �(���������(�����'
������-�

•� ���������'���(���������1�����������-��

•� ������' ����(���'������������(�2;���
�$���$�������������� 	��������������	�
�������	����,������������������	���� �(���������(�����'
������-��

•� ��'
�����1��(�������(�������������������� ���������������-8�
�
����'������$���
����������������>���-�
�

Page 7



;��$���'�1��� 	������������!����	�������������� 	������������)���"���
������D��
�
6�������''����������''���������� �����������
�
��	���5���������������+��2;������1��������
��(���� ������

��1��� 	�����������������
�((����
�'���� ����������((� 	�����

��
��������''�����-�������������$�������1������
(�����'� ��� ��,���� ��	� �

��������� �(� ���	� ����+� ��� �

��
�����-� ����� $���� 
��1����
��'���������������� ����	
�$������ ����������������� ����������������$������� ��� ���������
���1���������������� ��'���� 	���������
��(���������-�
�
#�������� �=������� 
��1������� ��� ������������ ���������� 
��,�������� ���������� ������  ��
�

�����������������������������������������1�������(������(���������������	����1���������
��5����-8�
�
����'������$���
�������������4�9�-�
�
������������������
�
304���-!"���-�� '�5#������ ���(�"�!��'� ���� $!"�!"%���$� ���� �"��'"����#�!�� '�.�'��
$����6!"%��"� $'� � ���� $!"�!"%���$� �����	��'�.�'���"�� ���!'� '�(�  �"���!�"��
�"��$!"�!"%��-��.#'�#����"��! .�� �"��������� ����'��$�#'%�"(71�
�
3*4���'�.�'��-��-'�#%��������!�)��'��"7�'�.��(� �"�)��('#�!"7�(�  !����)��"��"�
�""#���-��!����� ����� ����(�  !����� �7� �"!��'� ����#����$� ���������.�6�'��
�"�� �"�#'�� ���!'� '��.�"�!-��� �"�� .'�.�'�!�"��� �..�!(��!�"1����� '�.�'�)�6�!(��
6�#��������!"$�' �����)��������!�8�
�

•� �"7�(��"%�������7��� ���"��.'�(�������'��!"�.��(��!"���!���#���'!�7����
 �"!��'��"��'�%#������"���..'��������#����$������.�6�'�1��

•� �"7� (��"%��� ��� �.�(!$!(� ����� .�6�'�� ��!�� �#���'!�7� � .��7�� 6��"�
(�"�#(�!"%��"7�!"����!%��!�"�1��

•� ������ � -�'���$����$$� !"� ��!���#���'!�7�6�������� ����.�6�'� ���%'�"��
�#���'!���!�"�$�'�#����$�����1��

•� ����%'������$��������$$�6����'���-�������#���'!�������#����$�����1��

•� ����%'������$��������$$�6����'���-�������..�7�$�'�����#����$�����1��

•� ��"$!' ��!�"� �$� ���$$� �'�!"!"%� ��� �"�#'�� ���$$� !"������� 6!��� ����� �'��
(#''�"��!"����!'�.'�(�!(��1��

•� �9.��"��!�"� �$� ���� �7.��� �$� ('! ��� $�'� 6�!(�� ��!�� �#���'!�7� ����
�#���'!���� ���� #��� �$� ����� .�6�'�� $�'� !"����!%��!�"�� !"� ���� 7��'� /#���
�"�����"������7��'�-�$�'�������$�'�(� .�'!��"1�

•� �����#�(� ���$�������!"����!%��!�"�1��

•� ���� "# -�'� �$� �! ��� ���� #��� �$� ����� .�6�'� 6��� �#���'!���� -7� ��!��
�#���'!�7�!"�����7��'�/#����"�����"������7��'�-�$�'�������$�'�(� .�'!��"1��

•� �� .�'��!���$!%#'���$�'�����!��!(���"�!%�-�#'��#���'!�!��1�
�

**� :�����
2����
��
�
����
�
�����$����������''�����:����5�����������������'��������'������*.���(�����(�������
����
��� ��������'����������
�����%���������(���$
�&2�����������)�����'������ '������
�� ��
���� ��� ���� �������� ���������� ���������� ���� ��
���� ���� '����������� �(� ����
�������:�� ������������+-�

Page 8



�
;��� B����
� &���� �(� ������ )�����'���
� ����������� ���� ��
���� ���� �=
������� ����
(������� ��� ���� �

����=� ���������� ���� ����������� �� ���� B� ���� ���� ��(��������� �(�
���������� ����������� ���� 
������	� ��1���-� &�� �
��������� ����� ��� �=
��������� �(� ����
��������������� ����
��1����-�
�
��� ����'������� ��� .��)����� ����� �'������ 9�/� ��(����� ���� �� ����� ���� �����1��� ��
��
���� ���������� ���
���	� ���(��'����� )�����'���-� ����� ��
���
� ��� ��� �

����=
�
������1����������������' ����(� ������������1�	������� ��������������(��'�.9/����
���>@�/����4/>�������/@��-������(������������������������	��(�������������������-�����
������'����������� ��+���
�������
�����(���������������'��������	������'��������������
������������$�����$��

��=�'����	�E*-/�'������-������������(����' ������
�$�����EC��(�
�=
���������$��������������������������
����
���(�������E9�$�����+��	���� ����5������
�����������'���������������������������
����-���
�
;�� ���� ������
������� ��
���� ��� �� ����� ��� .4� )����� ���/
� ���� ������ '�����������
 ��+����(�����
�����������)�F�<������
�$�������'�������� ��E�-/��'������-�������$����
���	�.9�'����
��
���������� �����1�	�������������������(��'������$�����������
�����
(������� ��$� ��
������ $����� ���(��'� ����� ����'���
�  ����� ��� '���� ��������� ����
�����������(��'�����-�
�
�����������=
�������������������(�������$����������
���� ����������+��(�������	�����$����
�������������������������

����=-��
�
���� %�������� ������� ����� �� ��A$������� ��
���� $�����  �� ����������� ��� ���� ��''������
'�' ����  	� ���� ���� �(� ��=�� $��+-� &�� ��(��'��� ���� ��''������ ����� ��� �������

��
���	�'�����������
����$����� ������������� 	��� ������������-�
�
2��
����������(���������''����
�����%�������������(�������������(�������(�4/>� ���������
���1�	���������/@���$�������'�����1�������-��
�
0����'������ 	������������)���"���
���������� 	������������#'���
����$���A�
�
������������������!����  !�����'�(�%"!�����������.��""��� �!"��"�"(��'�.�'��
6�#���-���#- !����� �����-!"��� !"�;#"���"���� '�.�'��-��-'�#%��� ��� ��!���'� !���
�5#!����"���('#�!"7�(�  !�����!"�;#"������1�
�
�

*C� �
����������2�
��:�	�
�		������
���:�������������
�
��� ���$��� ���� ������������	�'��������(� ����'�����
���	���
� ���������� ����+������� ����
'�' �����(�������''���������������((������(���������$��+��1�������
����	���-�
�
�

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



����������	��
���	��
��
�����
��
	�����
������������

�
�������	
����
����������

�
��������� ����������� �����������������

� ������������ �� ������
����!!���
"����#�����
�

$�%����
��&����'����
"�$����	�
�


����!���� ����������� &�(��#���)�
�

��

�
*+� ������
��������
�����
���������������������		�����
�����
����������

�

�� ����,�����!������� ����
��������#������������������ ������� -��,� ����.���������-�
��'
�(/�����
����� ���!�,����'��������!��������0����-���'�����������������!����
.��������� ���� ��,,����	� 
����� �����-��1� ���� ����������� �--������ ��� ���!�����
.���������������,,����	������-���
���������������'������������������2��
�
������#������,������3�+�������0���4�
�
5�����
�
�����������!���������-�����6--����
���,,��������&�����!	�#����������1�
��
���� ���� ��'� ��������� ��� .��������� ���� ��,,����	� 
����� �����-��� ���#7���� ���
�����-���� �-� ��,,����	� �������� #���!� �--����� -����� ��� ����#������� ���� 0��#��� "�����
 ���!�,���� ��,,�������� #�� �����0��� ���� ���� .�������� �-� ��'
� (/� ���� 
�����
 ���!�,����#�������������������!������������#7����0��1�
��
�8�� ����,,���������� ���� ���� ���� ��� ���� �������,� ��� ���� ������� ��� ��������� ���
�������������-��������-�������,,����	����������������������������-���#�������0������
��������#���'��
��
����������,,����	������#��������������������,,����	������������-���#	��
��
,�����!� ������ �-� ���������� �������� ���,�)�� #������!�� -��� -��� �������� ��� ���� ��,�� �-�
�����-��2� ���� ������� ���� ����� �-� ����� �������� '���� #�� �����,����� #	� ���� �������9��
(���� �-� 
�����  ���!�,���� ��� ����� �-� ���� �����-��� �������1� ���:��� ������#����!�
������,�����������'�����������!�������-����������'��	�����'����������!��������������
��,��������������������������-����������������'������0������������#���#������������2�
��
�#��
�7�����������������#��,����������������#	�����������������������,,����	�!�����
���'�����������������#���!������-���������������-���������������!���-�����������������
�������������������������,,����	�
����������-��������	2�
��
�3�� ���� .�������� �-� ��'
� (/� ���� 
�����  ���!�,���� #�� ��,������� ��� ���� ��'�
�������� ������������0�� ��� ���� 7����� %��)��!� ;����� ��,���������!� ���� ��,,����	�
����
������������������������!�(�����-���!������� �,#���&��0����2�

Public Document Pack

Page 11



��
�*�� ���� .�������� �-� �������� '��)�� ��'����� �,��!�,����!� ���� �<�����!� #��!���� -���
#������!���,���<��� ���������#��!��
� ���#���,�� ���� ��������#����	��-� ����.���������-�
��'
�(/�����
����� ���!�,���2=�
�
��#�����,������3�+�'���������� ���#	�������������(���
�;����
�
�������
�%��������
/�����
��������-����'��!�!��������
�
5>����������������-�������������%��������������������0���0��;���������������!����;�����
�����������������������������������!�����#����	���������'������?�������	���#������
���������
�������
���,,����	�������������0����!������������������������#	�������#����:���#�����
.�,��������,�������������������������-�����&
/2�
�
%�� �����-���� #����0�� ����� ���� �������� ������� ,�)�� ���0������ '������ ����� �����	� ���
��������������	�#������!������������-��������������-�����&
/�����#����)���#��)������
���������'�������������?���������#	�������������-���������������������#	�������������
�����-����������2=�
�

*@� � ���!	����
�
�������"	��
�
���������� '����,��� �0��	#��	� ��� ����,�����!
�,���� �������������� ���� �<��������
���� ���������� '����� ���� ,�����!� '����� -����'2� ���� ��#�����  �,#��� '���
��-���������	����#������#����������������������!��������!�'��)���,,��,���2�
��������
'���� ���	� �'�� �,#���� ���� ����6--����� ��� �������� ���� ��,,������ ���� ��!!������
�����������'�����#����������-�����,,��!����2�
�

*�� ����������
	�����
����	����������� ����
�
 �,#����'������)���������������'����������	��������������������7�������� ����������
��������������'�����������,���������!��������
��-���
���������������,�����������'����
���	�'���2�
��
 �,#����'������,��������������	��������������������
�����������������!������@��-�
����60��0��'�����&������	�����������/����
�'������� ���	�'���� ��#7���� ��� �� ����	�
'���� ��������������'���� ���� ���,����#����������������
� �-���
� ����������� �������������
������������-�����'������!������!�,���2�
�
����������� ���$�%������������������������ ��������������;�0�������-�&��;���!�9��
���,��	�&������'�����'���������������<�,��	����%������	�A����!����#���	������������
���������������-��,�������.���������-���'
�(/�����
����� ���!�,�������������'���
��������	�������������!�;�0�����9��,�����!��'����������������-�������#���	�'������#��
���������2�
�
����������,���������������������������������������'��������0���0��������!�����������
��,,������'������#7�������������	�'�����������,�����2�
�

��� �#���
����
����� ��������
���������	��
�������
�
����������� (���
� ��� ����� ��!�����	
� ���������� ���� ��,,������ ��� ���� ����?��2� (��
�<�������� �������� ����� ���� 0��'�� �-� ��
���� %������ ���������� '��� ���� ��!����
���������� ���� #���� ��,���� ������	� �!������ ���� ����� ������� ������ #�� �� ����!�� �-�
��,������������ ���  �	
� ����
� ���� ������0���0�� !����� '����� '���� ��� ��0����� ����

Page 12



��������� �-� ��#������
� �������� �������
� ��,,����	� �������� ���� 0����!�� �����2�%�������
���0������ -����� B#�	?#��)9� ������
��������
�'�����������#������� -��� ����#���-����-�����
%���������������
�'�������������#������������)��#��)�#������!����������������������2��
�
(���������������������������� �������������,��������-�������������� ����� ������#����
'���������#��)������-��,����-�'����'�����������!�'����#������!��'�����'����������2�
(����)��������������,,����������������������?�����C����2�
�

��� �
���
������������
���������!	����
�		�	��
�
�$%%�
&'()*+��$',-.&'�&/��)0+� ��)*1��22,.��)*)3,(,*.
�
�
����.�������
������������-� ���� ������
��<�������� ���� ��������!�#������ ��� �����������
����� ���� �-� ���� �'�� ���������� ��������� �-� ���� &�����!��� 
����� /�0��'� '��� ���
������#���� ��'����� ������������ �����0��!� �� ��������#��� ���� #�������� #��!��2�%����
��!���� ��� ��#���	� ���0�����
� ������ '����� #�� -�'��� #��� #������ -���������2� >�� �������� �-�
��,,����	� �������� ���	� ������ ��,���� �����'���� ���� ��������#����	� -��� ������ ������!�
������#���!������-�����������,,����	�!�����2����������������-��������	�'������������
����������!����,,����	�!�����������,��-��'������������������2��
�
���� .�������� �,��������� ����� ��	� #������!�� ��� #�� ��������� �-� '����� #�� ��#����	�
��0�������2��
�
/��������!����C���������-��,�������,,�����
�����.�����������������������'���������#��
���,��� ��� ������������ �� B#�	?#��)9� ���0������ ����� ��� ������ ��������� �����	� ���
��,,����	�!������'�����������)��	����#������������������C�����!���#������!�'�����������
���0������������2�(�'�0��
�������,,����	�
����������-�����
��������	���������������
���0������ -��� ��,,����	� !������ ��� ����� #��)� �� #������!
� '������� ��	� ��	,���� ���
������	
��-�������,,����	�!�����������!���'���������,���!������-������	2�
�
���� ���������� �-� ���� �
�� �����	� '��� ��� �������!�� ��,,����	� !������ ��� ��)�� ���
�'�������� �-� ���� ��������#����	� -��� �������� #������!�2� ����� ���� #���� ����� ��� ��
��,#����-��<�,����������������������	��������!������,,������������#��#���-���������
������������2�
�
>��'���0��	� �,������������� ������������)������������0��'� ����������#���������������!�
,���������������������������������������'�����#�������������������#���������2�����
.�������� ���� ����!����� ���� ��--����!� 0��'�� ����� ���� ����� ���� �0��	���� ������� �����
7��!�,�������-�'���#���#������-���������2�
�
%���� ��!���� ��� D	����
0�����D����
� ������'���� �� ��,#��� �-� �������� ��� #�� �������
-��,�����������������-��2�%��������������'��������-���������'�����#������������'�	�
'�����'��� ��)��	� ���#�� ��������#��2������
�������	� ���� ���� ��'� ������������'�����
�������#������!��#�-���������-�����!����,
�#���������������'�������������)���������0����
0��#��� #�������� ����� '����� '����� ���'� ����� �� ��,,����	� !����� ���� ��--�������
��0�����-�����!����,�������������������	��-���������-��2�
�
����-��������� �,������������-� ������������!��� B#�	?#��)9��������'�������0������������
���������� �--���� ��� ���� �����-��� �-� ������� '����� ������ ����� ��� ���� ����� �-� ,����
#������!�� -��,� ��,,����	� ���2� >-� #������!�� ������-���� -����
������ ���� �����-��
� ���	�
'����� ������ ���� #�� ��������� �-� ��� ���� �������� '����� ������ ����� ��� �����0�� ��
��������#��� ���� #�������� #��!��2� ���� ��,�������� �������� '��� �-� ����,�����

Page 13



�,��������
���'�0��
�������	����9��<����������-�������!�0���,���
�����.�������
�����
���� ������������ ��������� #���!� ,���� '���� #����� ��� ���0������� ��� ��-����� �� �����#���
-����������!���-���,�����������2�
�
����.�������� ������� ����� ��� '��� ���� -�,������ '���� ���� "������/�'������ ������� �����
��,,����	�
����������-���2�(�'�0��
����'���-�,������'��������E���)�/�0��'�'�����
����������-��������,#����-��������������)�������������'�����
���������������������9��
�'���
�������	�����'�������!�0��!��<�,������-���!��	��������-��������������-���������
����!�����	�#���-�����������������2�
�
�&4*-$%%&'�	��&4%5,2�6��,)1,'�&/�.7,��&4*-$%�
�
���������������)�����������������������?���'����0����	����������2�>��'�����#�����!������
�����������������������0���������������#	�������,������������������������!�B!��?���9�
�������� -��� �������#��� -��������,�����������2�����&�����!���
�����/�0��'�����#����
�����!������������������������
���#7���������0������������	���,,��������������������
#	� ���� �������2� ���� ��������� ��������� ��� ���� ������� '���� ��,����� ��� ����	� ���� ����
����������-������������2��
�
�����������������������������!���������'��)��!�'����������,,����	������)�����������-�
���,��������,�)��!����,�����������'�����'�����#����-��,��-�0��	�����0������F������2�
�
����������������������������������������������?���'����0����	�����������������'�����������
����!������������������#����������������2�
�
/��������!� ��� C��������� -��,� ���� ��,,�����
� ����������� ����)��� ������� ����� ���
�������� �-� ���� ��������� �����	� ������ '��� �� '���� ��-����� ����,�� �-� ����!������
��������!� ����!������ ��� ���� ��#�����  �,#��� -��� ���������� &��0����� ���� ���
�<�����������-��������������0�����	��-�,��������-���������2��
�
(����!!���������������-���������D	����
0�����D�����������,�����������-�����-�������
��� 	����� -����'��!� ���� �����-��� -��,� ���� �������� ������ #�� ���,��� �� �������2� ����
��,,����	������'����0����#������,�����������-����������������������,�)��#������!��
-��� -��� �������� ��� ���� ��,�� �-� �����-��� ���� ������ ������#���� ������,� �������� ��'�����
������!�������-����������'��	����2�>-�������'�����������������,,����	�!����������!�
�� !���� 7�#� ��� ������!� �� -������	� ����� ������������ ����9�� ��0�� ��� ���� �0��	� #������!2�
�������������������!������!�,�����'����,�������,�����!�0�������������-���������2�
�

��� ������������������
�
�������������!!���������������������'�����'�����-������!����������������'�����!��-�����
����?���'����� ��-������ ��������-��� �	�����-�#������!�
� �2�2� ��#������
� ��������������������
���� B��	�#������!�92�(��C������� �����������-� �����������-� ������������� ��� ��������?���
������'������,�!���#�����������2�
�
%������!�����������&�����!���
�����/�0��'�������������-�������������-�������������!���
#��!�������#�������������#	�����������0���0��!�����#�����������������#�����!�����2�
�

�8� ��������������	��
��
�
>��'���,�0���#	��������������������������������#	������������ ���%���
������4��
�

Page 14



5����G�� -��������������#�� ��)��������� �� ������� ��� ���� �������� �������� -��,����0�����
���������-��������-���������������2�
��
���� ����� ��,,������ #����0��� ����� �-� ���� ��#����� ,������ ��� ��������� ��� ��#������
�
������ ������� #�� ��� ������ �� ������� ����� ����'�� �� -������ ��,������������ ��� #���!� ����
�������� #������!�� ���� ���0����� #��)� ����� ���
� ���������!� ���� '������ �-� ����
�0��'���,��!�,�7����	��-�%���������������2�
�	�����,������#����-��������,�������������
'�����#������,������������'����	��������������2�
�
�8��6�����������������#��������������������������C����,���������'����������������#��
����������-�#	���#�����������������0�������
������������ ����������<��� ��� ���� ������
�
�����,�������-����������#������-�����������'����������������������������0�����������	�
��,,������#�-��������������������������2�
�
�3�������C�����	�����,������#����-������#��)����������#����2=�
�
>��'���,�0����������,���,����#	��������������!!������� ���������#	������������
 �����
������4��
�
5>�� ��� ���������#��� ����<����� ����� ����'���� �-� ������������
� ��,����������	� ����0�����
�
������� ����#������	� #�� ��#0������ #	� ���������� ��,���!���!� ����!��� ,���� #	� ���
�����������!����2� �>-� ����������0���0��;�����'���� ���,�)���������������!��� ����� ���
������ �����!���0�
� #��� ��� �<����� ���� �������� ��� �����,���� ���� �'�� ��������� ���
����,,������ ������ ����!��� ��� �����!����� ���� ��� ��������� #	� ����� ��,,�����2�
�����C�����	
��������,,����������������������������,����#	���#���������������������
,������3�+2=�
�
�����,���,����'��������������������3�8�2�
�
�,2&%8,1���9���6��7).�$.�$2�4*)--,:.);%,�.&�,<:,-.�.7).�.7,�0$%%�&/�.7$2��&4*-$%+�
1,(&-').$-)%%=� )''$8,1� ).+� 27&4%1� 1,%$;,').,%=� ;,� 24;8,'.,1� ;=� :&%$.$-)%�
-)(:)$3*$*3�:%,13,2�()1,�;=�)*�&::&2$.$&*�3'&4:>��/�.7,��&*2,'8).$8,��'&4:�
0$27� .&� ()5,� ,%,-.$&*� :%,13,2� .7).� $2� .7,$'� :','&3).$8,+� ;4.� .&� ,<:,-.� .7,�
�&4*-$%� .&� 4*1,'($*,� $.2� &0*� :&%$-$,2� .&� )--&((&1).,� .7,$'� :%,13,2� $2�
&4.')3,&42� )*1� $2� ',2$2.,1� ;=� .7$2� -&(($..,,>� �&*2,?4,*.%=+� .7$2� -&(($..,,�
24::&'.2�.7,�1,-$2$&*�()1,�;=��);$*,.�)*1�',:&'.,1�$*�($*4.,����>�
�
�

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



������������	�
����
����������������

������������������

�
�������	�
����
���
����

�
�
������� ���������
� �������
���������
��

�
� ���������
�� �����
���

�� ��!����
��"���
����
�

��#����
$�%��&����
�

�
��'������ ���������
� (�$�!�������)��'������*�+����������

�
�
�

,�� ���
�������
����������
��������������
�
��-.�
��!�
����&�������������
�!�����
����������'�
�������
�'
�/�������� ����
�����
��������������!�������� ���-������� ���������������	� �*���	� ��������
�� ���-�����������
!���������!�
�0�
�
��-.�
��!�
��
�-���������������������������������
�	�'�
���������'�
��
�'��12��*�
����34�
4��!�����+�
�������
�����
��$����	�!�����
� �����!�
�� ��./���� ��� �� '�
���
!��'���������������!�����������-�������.���������
������	��*���	���������
���������������
��������
���*�����!��''�����

����-���0�
�
5������������
�������!�
��-���0�
�

6�� ������
��
�
���� ��
����
� �*� (�!	� #$� ���� 7����� ������-���� '
�������� ���� -������� �*� ����
-����������������
1������
������
�8�.
��
��
���0���������
�
�*�

������-������,
�
�
1� �����
�� 
����� �������� �
��
�--��	� ���� �'���*������� ��� ���� ����� ��� -�&��
'
��
���� !���� ���� #�-��� ��'����� ������-���� '
�/���	� ��� ���� ������ �*� ���� 
������
��'�
��
�� *
�-�%�

��� �*� ���� #���� �*� #�-��� $����
���0� ���� ��
����
� �*� 8�������
�������������������-���
�*�
������
�-�-.�
���*�����7����
����!�������&��'�������
����
7'
���������
�'�
��!�����.��'
���������������.��9�����-��������*�������.����0�
�
�������������� � ���!�"�! �#��$� ����$�� ���%&$' ����(� ���%�� &$)��������$�
*+�,�$'�!-��$��*���#!'�!-�*../�#���""!����0�
�

61� ��������
����������1�
����������
�
���� ��
����
� �*� 8������� '
�������� �� ��--�
�� ��� ��.���
� *�
-��� �*� ���� ��

����
'�������� �*� ���� 
�4����� ��������� ���� ����
��� 8���� .�������0� )�� ��������� ����
��-'�������� �*� ���� �
������� 
��2:
���� .������ .�� ��'�
�-���� ���������� ��
����
��4����� ���� '������ �'�����	� !����� ��!� ��������� ���� ��'�
�-���� �*� (�!	� #�-���
$����
���� ���� 7����� ������-���;� -�����
���� �������� ���� 
��2:
���� .������
���������� ���� *��������� �-'���������� �*� ���� ��.����� ���������;� ������'����� 4�
�������

Public Document Pack

Page 17



�������������
�������.�����;���������<'����������*�4�
������������
����������*�������

�9��
����*�
���
����������0�
�
���� -�����
���� �����-���� !��� .����� �'��� ���� ��*�
-������ '
�4����� !������
��'�
�-������ *���������-�����
���� 
�'�
��� ����!��� �'������ ���� ��.-������ ��� �����
-������� �*� ����� ��--�����0� )�� '
�������� ���� '�������� ��� ��� =1� �����
�� ���� ����
��
����
� ��
�������� ��� �'������ �����-���� ��� ��� 
2� 8�.
��
�� 
���0� #�� ���� ���� ����
�
���� !��
�� *��������� '
����
��� ���� .���� ������*���� ���� ���������� '���������
����
�'�����!������8������������
����
��������-���0�#����--������������'���
������������&���.��������.���������
�'�
������������� �-'�����*� ����4�
�������	� �*�����
���������	� !����� 
������ ��� .�������� �*� >20,-� ��� =1� ��
��� 
���0� ����� !��� ���
�-'
�4�-���� ��� ���� �����
�� '�������� ���� ��� ���� �-'���� �*� ���
��� ����
�����
'
�4�������
�'�
�������������.������-������=6
��,�8�.
��
��
�����
�*�
��0�
�
�������������� � ���!�"�! �#��$� ��0�
�

6
� 1�����
���������
�������
��
�
������
����
��*�8�������'
�4�������*�
-��������������
����
��-�����-����'�������	�
-�����
�����*� ����'
��������� ��������
�	� ����'�������� 
���
���������������<	�5��������
5�����-������$���	� ����
��� ��.�� ���� ����� ����-�� ����������� ���� ���� '��-���� �*�
?���*���0� )�� 
�������� ��� ���� ��

���� �����-��� ���-���	� ��� 
�'�
���� ����� ����?��&� �*�
"������� 9��
��
��� ��*������� 
�'�
�� '
�/������ �� .���&� ������&� *�
� �
�!��� �*� ���� @ �
�����-�� ���� ������������ ���� ���
������� 
��&� �*� ���� 
��������� .����� ���'�
� ����
�����
� ����� !��� *�
��� ������'����0� )�*������� *���
��� ���������� ����
� �������� !���� ����
�**������-����
���*���*������	���)	�*����������=0�A�����$�)���*���������!�����/�����01A�
*�
� �����
�� 
���0� � #�!� ��!� ���� *���
��� !����� *���� !��� ������
� .��� ���� ?��&� �*�
"��������?�"��!���'
����������������)���*�������!�����*���������*��������.���!�������
����
�*�
A0�
�
#���������������
�����*�
���
��*
�-���4���-���������������������������.�

�!������*�����
�������� ��� ��� 
2� 8�.
��
�� 
���0� ?������� �*� ���� '��
� ����
���� 
����� ��

������
�4����.��	�������
����
�
�'�
�����������
��������������4���-���������
����������������
��� ����
��&�� ��!� ����� ��
-� .�

�!���� ��� �
��
� ��� ��-'�
�
���� *���� ��'�����
�<'������
�0� #�!�4�
	� ���� ��
������ ������ ����� .�� ���'���� ��� ���� ���
�� ��
-� ��� ��

�������������-'��<��������9���-�
&�������������0�
�
������
����
�
�*�

�����������������

��������������!����
���
�����
�4�����������������
�������'
�4���������<'���������!����
���
����������-'
�4��������������������������<�
��������������� ���� 
������������������ 
���� ���?��������$����0�7�� ���� 
�9����� �*� ����
����
	���������'
�4���������-�����
������
��������������*����
���	��'�
�������
��	�'���
�������'����'�
&��������'�
&����'��������������0�
�
�������������� � ���!�"�! �#��$� ��0�
�

6=� ���,������	��1���*.+.�*.++��
�
������
����
��*�8�������'
������������'
�/������.������*�
�
�1�B
�11	�!�����!�����
.�� ���� *����� ���
� �*� ���� ��-'
������4�� +'������� $�4��!� ��+$�� 
��C0� #��
��--������ ����� ���� ��<�� �+$� !��� ���������� *�
� 
�1�� ���� !����� �������� ����
��4�
�-������<'������
��'�����*�
�
�11����
�1�0�#�!�4�
	������<������*�������''�
��
����� ������4�
�-����!����� ����� ��� '
�4���� ��� ���� �����-�� ��� �� ���.��� 
���������

Page 18



������ 
������ ��� �� ����� *
��D�� ��� �
����� *�
� ���� '�
���� �*� ���� ��<���+$0�#�� ���� ����
'��������� 4�
�������� ���������.���� ������*���� *�
�
�1�B
�11���������
���4���'-�����
!�����!�
�� ��&���� ��� �-'�����������*���������'���������*� ���������
���0� )��
��'��������
9��������� *
�-�-�-.�
�	� ���� ��
����
� '
�4����� ��� �<'��������� !���� 
���
�� ��� ����
'
�/���������
������������%��������'�������4���������������
���������8)�'��-�����
�
������
����
�
�'�
�������������'
�/������.������*�
�
�1�B
�11�!�����-'�����*
�-�����
.����.������*�
�
���B
�1���''
�4���.�������������
���
���
���	����������-���
-�
8��������� +�
������ 
���B
�1
� ��
���� .�� ���� ��.����� ��� 
=� ����� 
��2	� ���� !���
�'������*�
����������������������������
�'�
�0�����*�
�������<'������
��!���>=�102-	�
!���� *�
������ 
����
���� �*� >==�0=-0� ���� ��'� !����� ����� ��� .�� .
������ .�� ��
��-.���������*� ��4��������:�
� ���
�������������� ��<0�#����������-�������������
����������<����
������*��A����������**��������
�9��
�-���	���������!����������
������
�
�**�������� '����!����� '
������ �� ��
���� �*� >,06-0�#�� 
�'�
���� ����� ����� '�
�� �*� ����
"**�������� )�4���-���� ?������ *�
� 
�1�B
�11� !����� ������ .�� ����� ��� *���� ���-��
!�
&���������������4�
���*�������
'�
������������
��
�--�0���������
���--������
��������!����������������������>
0C-�������*�������*����������������
��
�--��!���'���
����**����4�����0�
�
7� -�-.�
� 
�*�

��� ��� ���� ���
����� ��� .�������� ��� �� ��4��� �4�
� ���� �.�4�� �����

���--������.�� ��������
����7�����
������<'
������ ����4��!� ����� ��������� ��4����*�
.��������!����� .�� ����� ��� &��'��������� ��<� ���
������ ��� �� ��!� ��4��� '
��
� ��� ����
�������������������
�1�0�
�
�������������� �  ���"!�2�3 ���#'�)� � (�!�*.+.4*.++�#��'"�� ����$��!�"�! ���
!�)'��!�-� �� �����#&$� 0�
�

6�� ����
������1����
��
����
�
������
�4���������1���
��	�
�
�������

�
�����	
��	��1����
�
8�
���
����-������,���
1������
��
�����������
����
��*�7�����+������+�
4�����'
�4�����
����'��������
�����������-������!������������������*
�-������
����
�-�
����
���
����
������ �����0� #�� 
�'�
���� ����� ��� 
��,	� ���� ��'�
�-���� �*� 7����� +������ +�
4�����
��7++����������������!���
�-�
����
���
�������
�����������*�������'
��������*�
�����
/�����
����
������*�'��&������*���
�	�!��
��'��'���������������������������
�������0�
���� '
�������� !�
�� ��4���'��� ��� 
����������� .�� .���� �7++� ���� ���� ����� ����� ��
�����*��������-.�
��*�'��'��������������4�
������.�4��������!������������������
����
!����� �
����
���� .�� �.������ ��� -���0�  ��� ��� ���� ������ ��
��-���� !��� �����

��
��'����4���������
������!�����.����4���������������������'
������
-������
��'��*�
����4�������!�������
���������.�������	�!��
�����
��!�������
��4��������*�������������0�
3*� =1� ����4������	� �� !�
�� ��� '����-����� ��������%�

��0� )�� !��� ������ �� ������ �����
!�
��������'�������������--�������������-���*�������.��������.��&����
���:
��10�
�
%�
&���� !������ ���� ����������� �*� E���� $��'����.��� ��--�������
F� ���� �!��%�

���
����� ����
-����� ����� 
��'����.������ *�
� ���� ������ ������� .�� ��&��� .�� ���� �����
�����
���;� ������ �����
������ .����� ���G�
&���
�	�5�
���%����� ���� ���0�"���� �*� ����
����� �����
������ !�
�� ���������� ��� 
��'���� �*� ���� ����4������� ���	� ��� ����� ����	�
�������������
��'����.�������*�*�������������
�0�����4������*�������������������.��!���
�''
�<�-������>10C-0�)���������-'������<'����������'
�����	�������
����
�!
�����������
+�
������� #������ 7����
���� �+#7�	� 
�9�������� ���� ����
4������� ���� 
���������� �*� ����
����� ���������-����
0� 7
.��
������ !��� '������ .�� ���� +#7� ���%�

��� ���� !��� ����
�<'
������ ���� 4��!� ����� H���
�� ��� ��� �4������� '
�B
��,� ����� ������ ����4������� ����

Page 19



9����*����� ������� ������ ���� ����� ���
�� ��� ��� '
��'���� �*� ���� ������ ����� ����'�����
���.�����I0� ������
����
� ���
�*�
�� !
���� ��� ���� +#7� ���� 
�9������� *�
-��� �
.��
������
�4�
�����-����
0������
�������*�����������������*�����-����
�����.������
������������
��������
�����-'�����������*�������������������*������������0�7������������	���
��'�����
!����������!�����0�
�
�������������� �  ���  ��$5���(�  �����%%&  ���#���33�!����  ��  ����((&3�!�� (�!�
 ��� 3�$ &$'&$)�6�!5� #�&$)� '$��! �5�$�  �� #!&$)�  �&��%�  �!�  �� �$� �""!�"!&� ��
3�$3�'�&�$0�
�

6,� ��������
��������������������������1��
�
��������*�"<�����4��'
�������������*�����
�����*� 
�'�
�����.-������ ��
�������� ����
���
� '
��������� ��� �4�
4��!� �*� ���� '�
*�
-����� �*� ���� �������� ��� ����4�
���� ����
J������*�
�%�

�����������������������
'�
�������������!���*�
�����9��
��
B������=1�
����-.�
�
��20�����
�'�
������.����'
�������� ��� ������.��������1����
���
����
�-�������1��
�*�
���������4��������������
�'�
�	�������.�������
�����'������������
���'
��������*�
-�������������������������-����*������������-����
���������������.���
���-�-.�
�0�)�����
�*�
����&���*�
������
�������������'�����
�'�
�����.��'�������������
�����
�������.
�
��!�������!��!��&���*����������*�����9��
��
�������'
�����������-����
.��������
����
��*���
'�
����+�
4��������������<���4����.�����.�����-������0�
�
�������������� � ���!�"�! �#��$� ����$�� ����&�6���7"!������#-� �����#&$� �&$�
!��� &�$� ��(' '!��(&$�$3&����$��"�!(�!%�$3��%�$& �!&$)�!�"�! ��#���'""�! ��0�
�

66� ��������������������
���*../�*.+.��
�
������
����
��*�8�������'
��������������'�
�-�����������
���:
�1�	�!�������������
��!�����8���������'�
�-����!���������
�.������������4�
��������4�
���*�����������-��
����'
��
��������
����
���:
�1�	�������������<���*�������
'�
��������0���������-����
��*�
-��� ����������� .���������'
����������'
�4����� ����.����� *�
� ��������� ��
4����
'�����!�����������*������!�����4�
�������4��������������������!���������4�
�������-��
�����./����4����*�������'�
�-���0�#����--���������������������
��!�����*��!���
�����
�������������4���������-�-�-.�
�I� ���)�����"<�������'
�����0�
�
�������������� � ����&$�$3����"�! %�$ ����$�*../�*.+.�#��$� ��0�
�

6C� ���������
�����������������

�

�����*..8�4�	������
�
��������
�
���� ��
����
� �*� 8������� ��������� ���� ��-'
������4�� ��
*�
-����� 7�����-����
���7��
�4��!�'
������*�
�����?���*����+�
4����*�
�
��20������!�������*�������7�
�'�
��
����������
����
�!���'����������
�'�
��������������������
���������?���*����+�
4�������
"<��������!���������
���*��0�+����*��������������!�
��-��������������'�������'
������
*
�-�7'
���
��2	��
���*�

����
��'����.������*
�-�����?���*���8
����)��'����
�����������
7�������--������������������������
����������*� ���(������*�"�9��
��� (3"�0�
�
�������������� � ���!�"�! �#��$� ����$�� ���3�$)!� '�� &�$���(� �����%%&  ���
(�!� ����73����$ �!� &$)�#���33�!���� �� �����%�%#�!���(�� �((�6�!5&$)�&$� ���
	�$�(& ��
�!�&3�0�
�
�
�

Page 20



62� ���������
�����������������

�

�����9���:��
�������
�����
�
*..8��
�
������
����
��*�8�������
�'�
�����'���������-'
������4����
*�
-�����7�����-����
���7�� @��� �*� $����
���� �@�$�� ������-���� *�
� 
��2	� !����� ���� 
�������� .����

��������.������7�������--������0�)��!������������������-�������.��-��������
�����
��7� *
�-�!�
&� ���� 
������� ��� ���� 
��C:
��2� *��������� ���
0� ���� ��
����
� !���
'������� ��� 
�'�
�� ����� ��� �� 
������ �*� �-'
�4�-���� ��
���� ���� ������-���� '�
���	�
%�

��� ���� ���
��� �� ��4��� ��
��	� ��� ���
����� ��� ���� 
��C� �4�
���� ���
�� �*� 
0� #��
'
�4������������������*� �������
����4�
�����&��� �������*���9��
��� (3"�������������
����*���
��!�
&����.������
��&����������
��������������-'
�4�-���0�
�
8
�-�
���	�����@�$�!�����.���������������
�������-'
������4��7
���7�����-����
��77�� ���� '
�4����� 
�'�
��� ��� ���� ��.����� ���� ��������� ���� �������� ��� ���� @�$�
������-���� *
�-�!�
&� ��� ����
������!���� ����-�4�� ��� �����770������!����� .�� ��
��
��
� ���������!����� ��4��4����!���
�4��!��*� 
����
���� 
�*��������'��'��	� )�	������
������4�
��-������ 
����
�������!���� ��� *��������� 
����
���0�#����--������ ����� ���
!�������
�����������

����-�����!�����'
�����������
������!�������
�����������������
���
����������
���

�������
��0�
�
������������
�
9+:���� � ���*..8������(�����'!3���������%�$ �#��$� ��0�
�
9*:� ��� � !�)'��!� !�"�! �� #�� "!���$ ��� �$� "!�)!���� �$�  ��� *../� ���� �(�
����'!3���������%�$ 0�
�
9;:���� � ��� ��$5���(� �����%%&  ���#���33�!���� �� ������((&3�!��&$�������&$�
 �����3'!&$)� ���&%"!���������!� &$)0�
�

6�� ���������
����������

�

�����9���:��
�������
�����
��
�
������
����
��*�8�������'
�4��������������*�����7�������--�������'
�/����.
��*�*�
�����
��-'
������4��7
���7�����-������77��@����*�$����
�����@�$��
����������-����
!�������4�
���
��2:
���0�#����--���������������
������77	�����@�$�������-����
����4�����*�
�-����������������
��������-'
�������
������-���*�
���
���4����������1��
&��� ������ �*� ��9��
�� � (3"�0����� ��
��
� ����� '
����'���!����� �''���!���� �����
������
��4������� �-'
�4������
��
����
������������-����4��0�������!�������
�����
���!�
��
����� ��&���� ��� 
���
���� ���� ��-.�
� �*� �����
������ �����4���� *��
� ���
�0� #�� ���� ���� ��
��-.�
� �*� ��4���'-����� !������ ���� ��!� @�$� ����� !�
�� ������������ .�� ���� '
�/����
.
��*����������������������������������''
��������-������'
�4����*�
�*��<�.����������*�
�
����������-�������.��.����������
�������4��!��*������4�-����0�#�!�4�
	����������
�������4��4�����
����
����
����*���./����4��/����-����*
�-�������
�0�
�
)��
��'����������--�����*
�-�-�-.�
�	�������
����
�����
���-�-.�
�����������&���
��������� ������*��**���
������������!������ �����
�/����?
��*�!�����.���'������ ��� ��&��
�������������
��������'�
��
���*
�-����������
���0�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 21



������������
�
9+:���� � ���*../������(�����'!3����!�2�3 �#!&�(�#��$� ��0�
�
9*:���� �!�)'��!�!�"�! ��#��"!�"�!����$�"!�)!�����$� ��������(�����'!3��0�
�

C�� ������������
<�������
�����������1�������
�
������
����
��*�8�������
�'�
�����'���
������'
��
����-�����������������./����4���
*�
� ��
'�
���� $��&� ���� )���
����� ������-���� ���� ��� ���� ���� ������'�����
��4���'-��������������-����-�����0�
�
�������������� � ���!�"�! �#��$� ����$��('! ��!�'"�� ��!�"�! ��#��"!���$ ��� ��
 ����""!�"!&� ��
3!' &$-���%%&  ���&$� ���3�%&$)�%'$&3&"���-��!0�
�
�
� � �

�

Page 22



COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
In support of Objective 5 of the Corporate Plan, which is: 
 
to create an excellent council, and in particular to: 

• improve the use of the Council’s land and assets; 

• maintain a sustainable and stable budget, providing value for money; 

• improve the Council’s budgeting process to fully reflect its priorities, 
 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will  
 
(i) review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with the 
discharge of the Council’s functions; 
 
(ii) make reports and/or recommendations to the Council and/or the Cabinet and/or 
any joint or area committee in connection with any policy or the discharge of any 
functions; 
 
(iii) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants; and 
 
(iv) exercise the right to call in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet 
implemented by the Executive; 
 
within the following terms of reference of the Cabinet portfolio(s) indicated: 
 
Community and Customer Engagement 
 
(1) Development of the Council’s approach to Community engagement and to 
build community capacity. 
 
(2) The Council’s Area Forum network. 
 
(3) Initiatives in the wider community that will increase the understanding of the 
democratic process, and reduce alienation and apathy. 
 
(4) The Council’s Customer Access Strategy and for ensuring that it takes full 
account of the needs of hard to reach people. 
 
(5) The Council’s compliance with the requirements of the Freedom of 
Information Act. 
 
(6) Grants and loans to voluntary and community organisations. 
 
(7) Contributing to the development and operation of Wirral’s community Legal 
Service. 
 
(8) The following areas: 

• mayoralty and civic ceremonial 

• hospitality 

• town twinning 

• registration of births, marriages and deaths 

• maintenance of memorials 

• membership of outside bodies. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 23



(9) The Council’s Communication Strategy and public relations. 
 
(10) Equality and diversity. 
 
Corporate Resources 
 
(11) The development, implementation and review of the Council’s arrangements 
for ensuring effective use of resources including meeting the requirements of the 
Audit Commission’s Use of Resources Assessment. 
 
(12) Financial monitoring, including standing orders and financial regulations. 
 
(13) Financial propriety. 
 
(14) Procurement compliance and contract compliance within the Authority. 
 
(15) Restrictive and selective tendering (other than civil engineering). 
 
(16) Where it is not a specified responsibility of the Employment and Appointments 
Committee, personnel issues including employee development and training, equal 
opportunities in employment and service delivery, health and safety, disciplinary and 
grievance procedures and recruitment. 
 
(17) The provision of legal and administrative services to the authority; and the 
Coroner’s Service. 
 
(18) The preparation, maintenance and review of an overall strategy for the 
management, use and disposal of all Council-owned land property (including the 
preparation of the Asset Management Plan). 
 
(19) Land issues including: 

• acquisition, disposal and appropriation of all land and property; 

• provision and management of administrative and civic offices; 

• commercial development and redevelopment of the Council land and 
property; 

• matters relating to the Council’s freehold interest and shareholding in 
Birkenhead Market. 

 
(20) The organisation of a corporate planned maintenance policy. 
 
(21) Co-ordinating performance management and performance indicators. 
 
Finance and Best Value 
 
(22) The Council’s contribution to the major partnership initiatives in which it is 
engaged, such as the Local Strategic Partnership, Local Area Agreement Partnership 
Board, Liverpool City Region and Local Government Association. 
 
(23) The following areas: 

• the formulation and submission of proposals relating to strategic policy; 

• the overall production of the Corporate Plan; 

• revenue and capital budgets, including preparations for the annual budget 
and Capital Plan; 

• schemes under the Private Finance Initiative; 

Page 24



• procurement. 
 
(24) Information technology. 
 
(25) Financial matters including insurance, rating, council tax and housing and 
council tax benefits. 
 
(26) The performance of the Council as measured through the Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment and Comprehensive Area Assessment process. 
 
(27) Initiatives in relation to local democracy and the modernisation of local 
government. 
 
All portfolios 
 
(28) Those parts of the Corporate Plan within the remit of this Committee. 
 
(29) To seek to achieve continuing and improving performance, better value for 
money and customer satisfaction in respect of those services provided through these 
areas. 
 
(30) To support the Council’s equal opportunity policies by promoting and 
monitoring initiatives to encourage equality of opportunity amongst disadvantaged 
groups including: the disabled, ethnic minorities, the long-term unemployed, the poor, 
and women; 
 
(31) To scrutinise Local Area Agreements that fall within the areas set out above 
and to hold partners to account. 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
1 JULY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT 
 
1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a summary in tabular format of the current position of the 

revenue accounts and General Fund balances. 
 
2. MONITORING STATEMENT 
 
2.1 The monitoring statement is attached to this report and includes the following: 
 

• Composition of the original 2009/10 budget by Department including 
agreed savings and policy options. 

• Monitoring against the 2009/10 budget including the financial implications 
of any Cabinet decisions. 

• Anticipated variances against the original budget. 

• Explanation of variances and areas identified as requiring further attention. 
 
2.2 The Statement is produced monthly and sent to all Members of Cabinet and 

this Committee as well as the Chairs of Scrutiny Committees. A formal report 
is submitted to each meeting of this Committee. 

 
3. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 The Statement presents an update of the revenue budget and General Fund 

balances as at 31 May 2009. 
 
3.2 At this stage of the financial year there are reports of financial pressures in:- 
 

a. Adult Social Services - projecting a £2.3 million overspend as a 
consequence of Community Care pressures and the impact of the 
changes agreed by Cabinet to non-residential care charges and 
residential and nursing home fees. The Director is developing action 
plans to address this overspend. 

 
b. Children & Young People - identified increasing demands, primarily 

within the areas of residential care and Special Education Needs 
(including transport). Together with the need for employee related 
savings the pressures are around £2.9 million. The Director has taken 
actions over Surestart / grant based activities that will reduce the likely 
overspend to £1.8 million. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



c. Law, HR & Asset Management - issues identified are primarily over 
capacity within the Department with the delivery of the Local Pay 
Review and the Strategic Asset Review and support for Care Services 
placing increasing burdens upon the available resources. 

 
d. Regeneration - historically the main area of concern is in meeting the 

income targets which continue to be closely monitored. The impact of 
the Public Inquiry into library provision has seen the planned 
programme for library changes placed on hold which is incurring 
additional costs of £68,000 per month plus the, yet to be confirmed, 
costs of the Inquiry. 

 
3.4 The 2008/09 accounts are presently being completed and the final outturn 

reported to Cabinet on 25 June 2009 and the Statement of Accounts to Audit 
and Risk Management Committee on 29 June 2009. 

 
3.5 The impact of the overspends in Adult Social Services and Children and 

Young People, if realised, would be to reduce the balance at 31 March 2010 
by around £4.1 million (from £6 million to £1.9 million) although the Directors 
are looking at actions to address the projected overspends. As referred to 
above the final position for 2008/09 will also impact upon the balance. 

 

Details £million £million 

Projected General Fund balances at 31 March 2010 
when setting the budget for 2009/10 

 6.0 

Cabinet decisions   

None as at 31 May which affected the forecasted budget  - 

Projected variances / potential overspends   

Overspend (see 3.2) 
        Adult Social Services 
        Children & Young People 

 
+2.3 
+1.8 

 
 

-4.1 

General Fund balances at 31 March 2010 based 
upon the projections at 31 May 

  
1.9 

 
3.6 There are no staffing implications arising directly from this report. 
 
4. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
5. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
6. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

Page 28



 
7. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no particular implications for any Members or wards arising out of 

this report. 
 
11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
11.1 None were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
12. RECOMMENDATION 
 
12.1 That the contents of the financial monitoring statement be noted. 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
FNCE/191/09 
 

Page 29



 
WIRRAL COUNCIL  FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT 2009/10  POSITION AS AT 31 MAY 2009 
 
 ORIGINAL BUDGET MONITORING COMMENTS 

Department Saving 
Target 

Policy 
Option 

Agreed 
Budget 

Saving 
Target 

Policy 
Option 

Variations 
Agreed  Projected 

Forecast  

Expenditure £000 £000 £000      £000 £000 £000  

Adult Social Services 3,777 - 86,098 * 
 

- - +2,300 88,398 Pressures are community care + savings from non-residential 
care charges and residential nursing home fees. 

Children & Young People 
(including Schools) 

1,380 970 77,914 ü 

 

ü 

 

- +1,800 79,714 Residential child care costs (demand increasing) and SEN 
(including transport) remain the volatile areas. 

Corporate Services - 310 5,649 - ü - - 5,649 No issues identified. 

Finance / Treasury Mgt 2,950 360 28,834 ü 

 

ü 

 

- - 28,834 Housing Benefit largest budget whilst Treasury Management 
activities affected by financial markets but presently on target. 

Law, HR and Asset Mgt 212 - 2,479 ü 

 

- - - 2,479 Issues identified are over capacity given Local Pay Review, 
Strategic Asset Review and support for Care Services. 

Regeneration 3,464 50 46,512 X 
 

ü 

 

- n/k- 46,512 The Public Inquiry will impact upon delivery of the projected 
savings from the SAR. Income targets remain a key area. 

Technical Services 966 180 41,921 ü * - - 41,921 Income being closely monitored and currently no issues. 

Merseytravel - - 26,305 N/a N/a - - 26,305 Fixed amount - no change. 

Local Pay Review - - 1,177 N/a N/a - - 1,177  

Contribution from Balances - - (3,193) N/a N/a - - (3,193) For SAR and Children’s care services. 

LABGI / LAA grants - - (1,600)   - - (1,600) No changes approved by Cabinet. 

Budget Requirement 12,749 1,870 312,096   - +4,100 316,196  

          

Income          

Revenue Support Grant - - 28,643 N/a N/a N/a N/a 28,643 Fixed amount-- no change 

Area Based Grant - - 31,038 N/a N/a N/a N/a 31,038 Government to confirm final allocations 

National Non Domestic Rate - - 124,094 N/a N/a N/a N/a 124,094 Fixed amount - no change 

Council Tax - - 129,008 N/a N/a N/a N/a 129,008 Fixed amount - no change 

Collection Fund Deficit - - (687) N/a N/a N/a N/a (687) Fixed amount - no change 

Total Income   312,096     312,096 Fixed amount -  no change 

          

Statement of Balances          

As at 1 April - - 8,507 - -   6,001 Opening balance – forecast for 1 April 2010 

Contributions from Balances - - (3,193) - -   - No changes approved by Cabinet. 

Contributions from Reserves - - 687 - -   - No changes approved by Cabinet. 

Cabinet decisions - - - - -   - No changes approved by Cabinet. Accounts for 2008/09 due 
to be completed in June. 

Variations – Agreed  Cabinet   - - -   - No changes approved by Cabinet. 

Variations – Projected - - - - -  -4,100 -4,100 Based on projections for Adults and Children’s. 

BALANCES   6,001    -4,100 1,901 Projected balance at start / end of year 

Key = No concern for item  ü  (Green)                   Key = Some concern for item   *   (Amber)                   Key = Concern for item   X   (Red) 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

0



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
1 JULY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
PROJECTED BUDGET 2010-2011 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report presents the projected budget for 2010-2011 which will be the final 

year of the Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR). 
 
2. BUDGET 2009-10 
 
2.1. The summary budget for 2009-10 as agreed by the Council on 2 March 2009 

is as follows: 
 
  £m 
 Base Budget 316.9 
 
 Resources 
  Formula Grant 152.8 
  Area Based Grant 31.0 
  Council Tax 129.0 
  Collection Fund -0.7 
  Use of Balances     4.8 
   316.9 
 
3. COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 
 
3.1. The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) 2007, was announced on 9 

October 2007.  An initial report on the Pre Budget Statement by the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer including the CSR was presented to the Cabinet 
on 1 November 2007.  The Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) announced the three year provisional Local Government 
Finance settlement on 6 December 2007 and the final settlement on 24 
January 2008. 

 
3.2. The provisional Local Government Finance Settlement for 2009-10 was 

issued by the DCLG on 26 November 2008.  The provisional settlement 
restated the indicative figures included in the settlement issued on 24 January 
2008 and was reported to Cabinet on 10 December 2008. 

 
3.3. The final settlement was issued on 21 January 2009 which again confirmed 

the indicative figures for 2010-11. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



3.4. In his budget speech on 22 April 2009 the Chancellor of the Exchequer stated 
that the main grant for 2010-11 would not be reduced but there will be 
reductions from 2011-12. 

 
4. VARIATIONS IDENTIFIED FOR 2010-2011 
 
4.1. Inflation –Provision is included for pay and prices at 2% and for income at 

3%. 
 
4.2. Capital Financing – Cabinet on 10 December 2008 agreed the capital 

programme for 2009-2012 at an additional financing cost totalling £2.9m for 
2010-11. 

 
4.3. Waste Disposal – The waste disposal levy is projected to increase by 15.7%, 

£2.6m. 
 
4.4. Pension Fund - The Pension Fund was actuarially revalued as at 31 March 

2007.  The phased implementation of the revised contribution rates over three 
years was agreed by the Cabinet on 12 December 2007. 

 
4.5. Merseytravel – The Merseytravel levy is projected to increase by 4% in 2010-

11, £1.0m. 
 
4.6. Invest to Save Schemes – The Cabinet has agreed a number of invest to 

save schemes which will reduce expenditure by £0.4m in 2010-11. 
 
4.7. Private Finance Initiative – Increase in PFI payments of £1.0m in 2010-11 

as the PFI reserve reduces. 
 
4.8. Benefits Subsidy – The Department for Work and Pensions has announced 

that benefits subsidy will be reduced by 3% per annum in real terms, 5% per 
annum in cash for certain elements of the subsidy, a reduction of £0.3m per 
annum. 

 
4.9. Other Unavoidable Growth – A number of relatively minor items of 

unavoidable growth of less than £0.2m will arise.  These should total less than 
£1m. 

 
5. OTHER DEVELOPMENTS 
 
5.1. There are a number of other developments which are likely to impact on the 

financial position of the Authority during 2010-11.  The impact of these issues 
will be reported to the Cabinet as and when they are resolved.  Some of the 
potentially most important issues are:- 

 
 (a) Global recession.  This is likely to impact on the budget in many ways 

and will be kept under continuous review. 

Page 32



 (b) Review of the Local Authority Business Growth Incentive Scheme.  A 
consultation paper on a revised scheme to commence in 2009 was 
reported to the Cabinet on 29 November 2007.  A further consultation 
paper has been received which if implemented could result in a grant of 
£0.2m in 2009-10 and £0.5m in 2010-11. 

 
 (c) Review of Supporting People Grant to be undertaken in 2009 with the 

grant to be absorbed into the Area Based Grant from 2010-11. 
 
 (d) Implementation of supplementary business rates which was reported to 

Cabinet on 29 November 2007. 
 
 (e) Review of the Area Cost Adjustment. 
 
 (f) Review of the population statistics to include the effects of recent 

migration, which was reported to the Cabinet on 16 April 2008. 
 
 (g) Review of the funding of social care with proposals to be released in 

June 2009 
 
 (h) Transfer of the responsibilities of the Learning and Skills Council to 

Local Authorities from 2010-11. 
 
 (i) Introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy in October 2009. 
 
 (j) Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards from 

2010 which was reported to the Cabinet on 9 April 2009. 
 
 (k) Carbon Reduction Commitment to be introduced from 2010-11 which 

was reported to the Cabinet on 19 March 2009. 
 
6. BALANCES 
 
6.1. The balances for 2009-10 have been set at £6m. 
 
7. EFFICIENCY REQUIREMENTS 
 
7.1. The gap between projected expenditure and anticipated resources will need 

to be bridged by a combination of savings and/or increased Council Tax. 
 
7.2. The efficiencies agreed in preparing the budget for 2009-10 included £0.5m 

which will become effective from 2010-11. 

Page 33



 
7.3. Apportionment of the efficiency requirement in line with the agreed three year 

efficiency plan would produce the following targets:- 
 
  £000 
 Adult Social Services 2,070 
 Children & Young People 1,200 
 Corporate Services 70 
 Finance 530 
 Law/HR/Asset Management 190 
 Regeneration 920 
 Techical Services     620 
  5,600 
 
7.4. Part of the Efficiency Investment Budget for 2010-11 is again being used to 

fund the following teams which are working on the delivery of the corporate 
change programme:- 

 
  £m 
 
 Procurement and Creditors 1.3 
 Change 0.7 
 Customer Services Development 0.2 
 Adult Social Services Reform 0.5 
  2.7 
 
7.5. I am assuming an annual Council Tax increase of 4%. 
 
7.6. The Minister for Local Government has stated that the Council Tax capping 

limit is likely to remain at 5%. 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. The projected budgets for 2010-11 is compiled from the base budget for 

2009-10 approved by Council on 2 March 2009, the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2009-2012 agreed by the Cabinet on 23 July 2008, and updated for 
the issues outlined in this report.  The projected budget is shown in the 
Appendix. 

 
9. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
10. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising form this report. 
 
11. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising from this report. 

Page 34



 
12. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
13. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
14. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
15. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
16. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
16.1. Comprehensive Spending Review – HM Treasury – October 2007 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy – 2009-2012 – July 2008 
 Formula Grant Settlement 2009-10 –DCLG –January 2009. 
 Estimates 2009-10 – March 2009 
 Budget – HM Treasury – April 2009. 
 
17. RECOMMENDATION 
 
17.1. That the projected budget for 2010-11 be updated and reported regularly to 

the Cabinet. 
 
 
 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
 
 
 
FNCE/121/09 
 

Page 35



APPENDIX 1 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PROJECTED BUDGET 2010-11 
 

   

  £m 
Base Budget   314.2 
Increased Requirements   
Pay Inflation   3.3 
Price Inflation   3.6 
Capital Financing   2.9 
Waste Disposal   2.6 
Pension Fund Revaluation   0.5 
Merseytravel   1.0 
Private Finance Initiative   1.0 
Benefits Subsidy   0.3 
Supporting People   10.3 
Unavoidable Growth   1.0 
Efficiency Investment Fund       2.6 
   343.3 
Reduced Requirements 
Income Inflation 

  
 -1.0 

Invest To Save   -0.4 
LABGI   -0.3 
Area Based Grant   -0.4 
Agreed Efficiencies      -0.5 
Forecast Expenditure   341.0 
   
Resources   
Formula Grant   157.9 
Area Based Grant   41.0 
Council Tax   129.0 
LAA Reward Grant       1.4 
LABGI   0.5 
Reserves        0.5 
Forecast Resources   330.3 
   
Shortfall   10.7 
Council Tax Increase   5.2 
Efficiencies required   5.5 
 

Page 36



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\5\9\ai00004953\coefin090701rep31.doc 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
1 JULY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2011-2014 
 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. With the release of documents supporting the Chancellor of the Exchequer’s 

Budget on 22 April 2009 it is now possible to make an initial estimate of the 
projected budgets for the years from 2011 to 2014. 

 
2. ASSUMPTIONS UNDERPINNING THE PROJECTIONS 
 
2.1. Inflation – HM Treasury is assuming a return to a long term inflation rate of 2%.  

Therefore pay and prices are assumed to increased by 2% per annum with 
income to continue to increase by 3% per annum. 

 
2.2. Capital Financing – HM Treasury is assuming that the level of capital 

investment will reduce by 50% between 2009-10 and 2013-14.  The annual 
increase in capital financing charges has therefore been reduced to £2.0m. 

 
2.3. Pension Fund – the Department for Communities and Local Government 

(DCLG) has yet to finalise the basis on which the 2010 pension fund 
revaluation will be undertaken and also the proposed cost sharing 
arrangements.  Therefore I am assuming a continuation of the current annual 
increase of £0.5m. 

 
2.4. Waste Disposal – the increase in the levy will be dependent on delivery of the 

waste disposal strategy.  The Landfill Tax will increase by £8 per ton per 
annum, an increase of 50% between 2010-11 and 2013-14. 

 
2.5. Merseytravel – the levy is assumed to continue to increase by 4% per annum. 
 
2.6. Private Finance Initiative – the latest projections are included. 
 
2.7. Benefits – the Department for Work and Pensions is estimating an annual 

increase of 1.7%. 
 
2.8. Schools – it is assumed that the Schools Budget will vary in line with the 

Dedicated Schools Grant. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 37



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\5\9\ai00004953\coefin090701rep31.doc 

 
2.9. Adult Social Services Reform – the Reform Grant of £1.9m will cease in 2011-

12 with the assumed implementation of the personalisation agenda, from which 
the Department of Health is assuming efficiencies of upto 7%.  I have only 
assumed that the removal of the Reform Grant will not impact on the net 
budget. 

 
2.10 Learning and Skills Council – it is assumed that the transfer of responsibilities 

to the Authority will be on a full cost basis. 
 
2.11. Carbon Reduction Commitment – payment of £1.0m commencing in 2011-12.  

It is assumed that the Authority will reduce the carbon footprint sufficiently to 
recover these payments. 

 
2.12. Other Unavoidable Growth – a number of items of unavoidable growth of less 

than £0.2m will arise.  These usually total about £1m per annum. 
 
2.13. Efficiency Investment – in order to continue to deliver efficiencies in future 

years it will be necessary to continue to invest and therefore I have assumed a 
budget of £2m per annum. 

 
2.14. Government Grants – the target for overall growth in public expenditure has 

been reduced from 1.8% in the Budget 2008 to 1.2% in the Pre-Budget Report 
to 0.7% in the Budget 2009.  After allowing for debt repayments and the 
increase in welfare benefits of 1.7%, the rest of the public sector will face an 
annual reduction of 2.3%. 

 
2.15 Council Tax – I am assuming an annual increase of 4%. 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1. The assumptions outlined above are reflected in the budget projections in the 

Appendix. 
 
4. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
5. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
6. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS  

 

7.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

Page 38



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\5\9\ai00004953\coefin090701rep31.doc 

8. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11. BACKGROUNG PAPERS 
 
11.1. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2009-12 – July 2008 
 Formula Grant Settlement 2009-10 – DCLG – January 2009 
 Estimates 2009-10 – March 2009 
 Budget – HM Treasury – April 2009 
 
12. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1. That the budget projections be kept under review as the global recession 

develops. 
 
12.2. That further efficiencies be sought through the delivery of the strategic change 

programme, the extension of that programme and by specific service 
efficiencies. 

 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE. 
 
 
 
FNCE/122/09 
 

Page 39



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\5\9\ai00004953\coefin090701rep31.doc 

APPENDIX 1 

 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 

BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2011-2014 

 

 
  2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
  £M £M £M 
 
Base Budget 335.5 333.9 335.1 
 
Increased Requirements 
Pay Inflation 3.4 3.4 3.5 
Price Inflation 3.7 3.7 3.8 
Capital Financing 2.0 2.0 2.0 
Pension Fund 0.5 0.5 0.5 
Waste Disposal 3.0 4.0 5.0 
Merseytravel 1.0 1.1 1.1 
Private Finance Initiative 0.2 0.2 0.2 
Benefits 2.4 2.4 2.5 
Other Unavoidable Growth 1.0 1.0 1.0 
Efficiency Investment     2.0      2.0      2.0 
 
  354.7 354.2 356.7 
 
Reduced Requirements 
Income Inflation -1.0 -1.1 -1.1 
Benefits Subsidy     -2.2     -2.2     -2.3 
 
  351.5 350.9 353.3 
 
Resources 
Grants 194.3 189.9 185.5 
Council Tax 134.2 139.6 145.2 
 
Forecast Resources 328.5 329.5 330.7 
 
Shortfall 23.0 21.4 22.6 
Council Tax Increase 5.4 5.6 5.8 
Efficiencies Required 17.6 15.8 16.8 
 
 

Page 40



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
1 JULY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
GENERAL FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report provides information on the treasury management position, monitoring 

of the prudential indicators, the position regarding Council Tax, National Non 
Domestic Rate, general debt and cash income collection and the payment of 
Benefits. 

 
2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1. Current Economic Environment 
 
2.1.1 The UK is in a recession with economic growth forecast to fall by 3.8% in 2009. The 

recent glimmers of improvement need to be viewed with some caution as it is easy 
to improve on figures that have been so bad in recent months.  

 
2.1.2 Inflation figures continued their descent with the official measure of inflation, CPI, 

falling to 2.3% and RPI falling into deflation territory at -1.2% for May 2009. While 
CPI remains above the Bank of England (BoE) target of 2% it continues to fall and 
is expected to fall to near 0% in the second half of 2009. 

  
2.1.3 The BoE base rate remains at 0.5% and is forecast to stay at this level throughout 

2009. The BoE continues to try and stimulate the economy through Quantitative 
Easing (QE) and at their meeting in May 2009 the members of the Monetary Policy 
Committee voted to increase the QE programme by a further £50billion. It is hoped 
that this will provide sufficient encouragement to the economy to help generate 
growth in the near future.  

 
2.2. Investments 
 
2.2.1. The Treasury Management Team invests money for periods varying from 1 day to 

10 years, in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy, to earn interest 
until the money is required by the Council. This money occurs for a number of 
reasons including; 

• General Fund Balances 

• Reserves and Provisions 

• Grants received in advance of expenditure 

• Money borrowed in advance of capital expenditure 

• Schools Balances 

• Daily cashflow/ working capital 

Agenda Item 9

Page 41



 
2.2.2 As at the 31 May 2009 the Council held investments of £110m. The table below 

details these investments;  
 
 Table 1: Investments as at 31 May 2009 
 

 Investments with: £m 

UK Banks 69 

Building Societies 13 

Debt Management Office 0 

Other Local Authorities 0 

Money Market Funds  27 

Gilts and Other Unit Trusts 1 

TOTAL 110 

 
2.2.3 Of the above investments  £41m is invested in instant access funds, £63m is 

invested for up to 1 year, £2m is invested for up to 2 years and £4m is invested for 
up to 5 years.  

 
2.2.4 The average rate of return on investments as at 31 May 2009 was 2.03%. The 

graph below shows the Treasury Management Team rate of return against the Bank 
of England base rate and the 3 month LIBOR (the inter bank lending rate); 

 
 Chart 1: Investment Rate of Return in 2008/09 

-

0.1000

0.2000

0.3000

0.4000

0.5000

0.6000

0.7000

0.8000

0.9000

1.0000

1.1000

1.2000

1.3000

1.4000

1.5000

1.6000

1.7000

1.8000

1.9000

2.0000

2.1000

2.2000

2.3000

2.4000

2.5000

2.6000

2.7000

2.8000

2.9000

3.0000

01/04/09 11/04/09 21/04/09 01/05/09 11/05/09 21/05/09 31/05/09

Date

In
te

re
s
t 
R

a
te

 (
%

)

BoE Base Rate

3 Month LIBOR

Wirral Council's Average Investment Rate of Return

 
 
2.2.5 The rate at which the Council can invest money has fallen considerably over the 

year, in line with the falling BoE base rate.  
 
2.2.6 Since November 2008 the Council has maintained a more restrictive policy on new 

investments by only investing in UK institutions AA rated or above that have 
received Government guarantees of support, if required. The Council also continues 
to invest in AAA rated money market funds and the Debt Management Office 
(DMO). 

Page 42



2.2.7 The 2009/10 investment income budget has been adjusted down to £1.3m to reflect 
the low interest rates that are anticipated to continue throughout the financial year. 
With low interest the Council will not achieve the large surpluses that have been 
made in the past few years.  

 
2.2.8 The security of the investments always takes priority over the returns. 

 
 Icelandic Investment 

2.2.9 The Council had a deposit of £2m with Heritable Bank and Members have received 
regular updates regarding the circumstances and the current situation. In March 
2009 an Audit Commission report confirmed that Wirral Council has acted, and 
continues to act, prudently and properly in all its investment activities.  

 
2.2.10 Based on present information, the Heritable Bank Administrators projections 

indicate a base case return to creditor of between 70-80 pence in the pound.  The 
Administrators have estimated that the return to creditors improves where the book 
is run-off over a longer time period (i.e. 70 pence return through to end of 2010 and 
80 pence return through to end of 2012). If conditions improve over this period of 
time it is possible that the final recovery could be higher than the base case above 
and the Council remains confident that the money will be repaid in full.   

 
2.2.11 The first payment from the Administrators of 15% should be returned to the Council 

in July 2009. 
 
2.3. Borrowings 
 
2.3.1 The Council undertakes borrowings to help fund capital expenditure. This year the 

capital programme required borrowings of £28m. However, to date no additional 
borrowing has been undertaken. The table below shows the total borrowings of the 
Council as at 31 May 2009. 

 
 Table 2: Borrowings as at 31 May 2009.  

Borrowings £m 

PWLB 110 

Market Loans 174 

Temporary Loans 10 

TOTAL 294 

 
2.3.2 The Council is able to borrow from two main sources, either from the Public Works 

Loan Board (PWLB), which is effectively borrowing from the Government, or from 
the Market, i.e. direct from the banks.  

 
2.3.3 As the year progresses an assessment will be made as to the best time to borrow 

money. Currently, as the rate of return from investments has diminished and the 
perceived risk of investments has increased, it has become more appropriate to 
reduce the level of investment.  

 
2.3.4 By not reinvesting money as investments mature I am able to use this money to 

temporarily fund capital expenditure. This therefore temporarily reduces the need to 
undertake new long term borrowing and also alleviates the difficulty and risk in 
finding a safe counterparty to invest with.  

Page 43



 
2.3.5 This strategy produces savings as borrowing money long term to fund the capital 

programme would currently be at an interest rate of approximately 4.5% while 
investments currently only earn approximately 0.7%. By using investments to fund 
the capital programme in the short term the Council loses 0.7% in investment 
income but saves 4.5% normally paid on borrowings thereby making a net saving of 
3.8%.     

 
2.3.6 The downside to this strategy is that investments are not permanent surplus money 

but rather money set aside for a specific, future, reason. By using these investments 
to fund the capital programme there will come a time when the Council may 
encounter cashflow problems. However, this problem can be rectified by temporarily 
borrowing money as and when required. Short term temporary borrowing currently 
costs 0.5%, significantly less than long term borrowing. 

 
2.3.7 This strategy has been adopted in the short term as a reaction to complex and 

unique market conditions. It is not a strategy that would normally be cost effective 
but is beneficial at this time. The Treasury Management Team will continue to 
monitor the situation to ensure that as the economic conditions change the strategy 
is adjusted accordingly.  

 
2.4. Monitoring of the Prudential Code Indicators 
 
2.4.1 The introduction of the Prudential Code in 2004 gave Local Authorities greater 

freedom in making capital strategy decisions. The prudential indicators allow the 
Council to demonstrate that it is complying with the statutory end of establishing 
prudence and affordability within its capital strategy. 

 
2.4.2 Below is a selection of prudential indicators which demonstrate that the treasury 

management decisions are in line with the capital strategy, which is prudent and 
affordable.  

 
 Net External Borrowing and Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Indicator  
 
2.4.3 The CFR measures the underlying need to borrow money to finance capital 

expenditure.  The Prudential Code stipulates that net external borrowing should not 
exceed the CFR for the previous year plus the estimated additional CFR 
requirement for the current and next two financial years. Table 3 below shows the 
cumulative CFR and net borrowing of the Council.  

  
 Table 3: Net External Borrowing compared with CFR. 
 

  £m 

CFR in previous year (2008-09 estimate) 317 

additional CFR in current year (2009-10) 14 

additional CFR in 2010-11 12 

additional CFR in 2011-12 8 

Cumulative CFR 351 

    

External Borrowing as at 31 May 2009 294 

 

Page 44



 
2.4.4 Net external borrowing does not exceed the CFR and it is not expected to in the 

future. This is a key indicator of prudence. 
 
 Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary Indicators 
 
2.4.5 The Authorised Borrowing Limit is the amount determined as the level of borrowing 

which, while not desired, could be afforded but may not be sustainable. It is not 
treated as an upper limit for borrowing for capital purposes alone since it also 
encompasses temporary borrowing.  An unanticipated revision to this limit is 
considered to be an exceptional event and would require a review of all the other 
affordability indicators. 

 
2.4.6 The Operational Boundary is the amount determined as the expectation of the 

maximum external debt according to probable events projected by the estimates 
and makes no allowance for any headroom. It is designed to alert the Authority to 
any imminent breach of the Authorised Limit. 
 

 Table 4: Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary Indicator 

 Apr 09 May 09 
 £m £m 

Authorised limit 475 475 

Operational Boundary 460 460 

Total Council Borrowing 294 294 

 
2.4.7 The table above shows that neither the authorised limit nor the operational boundary 

was breached in April or May 2009. This is a key indicator of affordability. 
  
 Interest Rate Exposures Indicator 
 
2.4.8 The Prudential Code also requires Local Authorities to set limits for the exposure to 

the effects of interest rate changes. Limits are set for the amount of borrowings/ 
investments which are subject to variable rates of interest and the amount which is 
subject to fixed rates of interest. Table 5 shows the interest rate exposure as at 31 
May 2009.   

 
 Table 5: Interest Rate Exposure: 

Interest Rate Exposure 
Fixed Rate 
of Interest 

Variable 
Rate of 
Interest 

Total 

    

Borrowings £284m £10m £294m 

Proportion of Borrowings 96.6% 3.4% 100% 

Upper Limit 100% 50%  

    

Investments £6m £104m £110m 

Proportion of Investments 5.5% 94.5% 100% 

Upper Limit 100% 100%  

    

Net Borrowing £278m £-94m £184m 

Proportion of Total Net Borrowing 151% -34% 100% 

 
Page 45



2.4.9 The table above shows that borrowings are mainly at fixed rates of interest and 
investments are mainly at variable rates of interest. This was considered to be a 
good position while interest rates were rising as the cost of existing borrowings has 
remained stable and the investments, at variable rates of interest, have generated 
increasing levels of income.   

 
2.4.10 As the environment has changed to one of falling/ low interest rates the Treasury 

Management Team is working to adjust this position. This work is unfortunately 
restricted by a number of factors: 

 

• the level of uncertainty in the markets makes investing for long periods at fixed 
rates of interest more risky and therefore the Council continues to only invest 
short term at variable rates of interest;  

• Many Council loans have expensive penalties for early repayment or 
rescheduling which makes changing the debt position difficult.  

 
2.4.11 The Treasury Management Team will continue to work hard to improve the position 

within these limiting factors. 
  
 Maturity Structure of Borrowing Indicator 
 
2.4.12 The maturity structure of the borrowing has also been set to achieve maximum 

flexibility with the Authority able to undertake all borrowing with a short maturity date 
or a long maturity date. Table 6 shows the current maturity structure of borrowing. 
 
Table 6: Maturity Structure of Borrowing 

 31-May-09 31-May-09  

Borrowings Maturity (years) £m % 

Total Short Term Borrowing Less than 1 year 24 8 

Long Term Borrowing Over 1 year under 2 years 15 5 

 Over 2 years under 3 years 16 5 

 Over 3 years under 4 years 12 4 

 Over 4 years under 5 years 28 10 

 Over 5 years under 10 years 34 12 

 Over 10 years under 20 years 39 13 

 Over 20 years under 40 years 33 11 

 Over 40 years under 60 years 74 25 

 Over 60 years under 70 years 19 7 

Total Long Term Borrowing  270 92 

Total Borrowing  294 100 

 
3. REVENUES COLLECTION 
 
3.1. The following statement compares the amount collected for Council Tax in the 

period 1 April 2009 to 31 May 2009 with the amount collected in the same period in 
2008/09. 

  Actual Actual 
  2009/10 2008/09 
  £ £ 
 Cash to Collect 123,144,155 119,401,872 
 Cash Collected 24,295,294 23,569,789 
 % Collected 19.7% 19.7% 
 Page 46



3.2. The following statement compares the amount collected for National Non-
Domestic Rates in the period 1 April 2009 to 31 May 2009 with the amount 
collected in the same period in 2008/09. 

 
  Actual Actual 
  2009/10 2008/09 
  £ £ 
 Total Collectable (including arrears)  75,845,824  66,002,023 
 Amount Outstanding    64,623,372  54,123,317 
 % Outstanding 85.20% 82.00% 
 Amount Collectable 2009/10 66,949,292 64,772,775 
 Net 2009/10 Cash Collected 11,045,295 12,605,089 
 % Collected 16.50% 19.46% 
 
3.3. It is pleasing to note that despite the current economic climate Council Tax payment 

is currently maintained at the 2008-9 level.  The 100% level for empty Business 
Rate on properties above a rateable value of £15000, the revised port assessments 
and the current economic climate continue to have a detrimental effect on Business 
Rate collection levels.  Comparison with similar local authorities shows a similar 
drop in collection. 

 
3.4. The following statement provides information concerning collection of local taxes 

from 1 April 2009 to 31 May 2009. 
 
  Council Tax Business 
   Rates 
 Reminders/Final Notices 20,519 704 
 Summonses 5,916 0 
 Liability Orders 1,965 0 
 
 Recovery action in progress 
 Attachment of Earnings 303 
 Deduction from Income Support  592 - 
 Accounts to Bailiff 1,602 83 
 Pre-Committal Warning Letters 973 - 
 Committal Orders Issued 4 0 
 Debtors Committed 0 0 
 

Current Status of Agent Work in respect of Committals for 1 April 2009 to 
31May 2009. 
 

 Warrants of Arrest issued by Court (Bail and No Bail)  25 
 Warrants of Arrest (Bail) to Warrant officer                                         30 
 Warrants of Arrest (No Bail) to Warrant officer  8 
 Returned successful (Bail)   7 
 Returned successful (No Bail)   5 
 Returned other reasons (Bail)   1 
 Returned other reasons (No Bail)   0 
 

Page 47



3.5. Insolvency cases to 31 May 2009 
 
 The following information concerns Council Tax recovery work which involves cases 

where Insolvency action or charging orders against properties are used. 
 
 Bankruptcy cases 252 
 Charging orders 78 
 Winding up orders 2 
 

New cases from 1 April 2009 to 31 May 2009 
 
Bankruptcy 2 
Charging orders 2 
Winding up orders     0 
 336 
Status of Insolvency cases at 31 May 2009 
 

Winding-up paid 1 
Charging orders granted 39 
Winding up Order 1 
Supporting other petitions 3 
Cases paid 83 
Bankruptcy orders 95 
Cases closed 95 
Ongoing cases   19 
 336 

 
3.6. Fees and Charges 
 
3.6.1. The following budgets and income received relate to other sources of cash income 

generated by the Council:- 
 

 

2008/09 
Budget 

Income to 
31-May-08 

2009/10 
Budget 

Income to 
31-May-09 

i. School Meals £1,578,400 £72,692 £1,607,800 £185,628 

ii. Sports Centres £3,539,300 £387,918 £3,867,300 £374,027 

iii. Golf Courses £885,600 £165,831 £912,200 £259,402 

iv. Burials and Cremations £2,429,200 £297,907 £2,429,200 £214,313 

v. Building Control Fees £756,700 £94,382 £651,900 £117,760 

vi. Land Charges £470,100 £46,887 £358,300 £45,386 

vii. Car Park (Pay and Display) £2,424,200 £237,333 £2,496,900 £286,428 

viii. Car Park (Penalty Notices) £1,149,800 £163,958 £1,149,800 £150,130 

 
3.6.2. Further explanation on the above budgets and income collection performance is 

provided below: 
 

(i) School Meals:  The first two months income for school meals includes the 
Easter holiday period, and so income is much higher when compared to the 
same time last year, which was less affected by an earlier Easter. 

 
(ii) Sports Centres:  Currently it is expected that the budgeted income will be 

achieved. 
 
(iii) Golf Courses:  Currently it is expected that the budgeted income will be 

achieved. Page 48



 
(iv) Burials and Cremations:  Currently it is expected that the budgeted income 

will be achieved. 
 
(v) Building Control Fees: It is anticipated that the income will be achieved. 
 
(vi) Land Charges:  It is anticipated that the income will be achieved. 
 
(vii) Car Parks Income (Pay and Display Tickets): It is anticipated that the year 

end income will be closely in line with budget. 
 
(viii) Car Park Income (Penalty Notices):  It is anticipated that the year end 

income will be closely in line with the budget. 
 
3.6.3. Sundry Debtors 
  Actual Actual 
   2009/10 2008/09 
   
 Amount Billed in last 12 months as at 31.05.09 £77,783,290 £65,812,404 
 Total outstanding as at 31.05.09 £18,916,594 £18,346,400 
 Arrears at 31.05.09 £12,122,919 £12,344,667 
 Number of invoices in arrears at 31.05.09 12,111 11,883 
 Number of reminders 01.04.09 to 31.05.09 5,244 6,556 
 
 The increase in sums billed reflects the increase in Adult Social Services accounts 

now being issued.  However it is important to note that the total outstanding includes 
the sum still within the normal settlement period.  The arrears sum reflects debts 
over one month old and this has remained constant despite the overall increase in 
accounts. 

 
4. HOUSING BENEFITS 
 
4.1. The following statement details the number of claimants in respect of benefit and 

the expenditure for Private Tenants and those in receipt of Council Tax Benefit up 
to 31 May 2009. 

  2009/10 2008/09 
 
 Number of Private Tenant recipients 27,627 26,161 
 Total rent allowance expenditure £19,176,357 
  
 Number under the Local Housing Allowance 5,583 - 
 scheme (included in the above) £5,187,761  
  
 Number of Council Tax Benefit recipients 36,519 35,029 
 Total Council Tax Benefit expenditure £29,087,706  
 
 Total expenditure on benefit to date £53,451,824 
 

Page 49



4.2. The following statement provides information concerning the breakdown according 
to client type as at 31 May 2009 

 
  Private Tenants Owner Occupiers 
 

Working age and in receipt of J.S.A. 13,982 1,812 
Elderly and in receipt of J.S.A. 7,026 5,562 
Working age and not receiving J.S.A. 4,655 1,200 
Elderly and not in receipt of J.S.A.   1,959   3,174 
Total  27,627 11,748 
 
There are 39,375 benefit recipients in Wirral as at 31 May 2009.  By comparison 
there were 37,276 at 31 May 2009.There has been a notable increase in owner 
occupiers of working age who are not in receipt of Job Seekers Allowance . 

 
4.3. Housing Benefit Fraud and Enquiries 
  01.04.08 to 01.04.09 to 
  31.03.09 31.05.09 

 

 New Cases referred to Fraud team in period 2087 406 
 Cases where fraud found and action taken 158 14 
 Cases investigated, no fraud found 
     and recovery of overpayment may be sought 158 158 
 Cases under current investigation 237 219 
 Surveillance Operations Undertaken 0 0 
 

 Cases where fraud found and action taken; 
 Administration penalty 34 5 
 Caution issued and accepted 101 7 
 Successful prosecution 23 2 
 Summons issued for prosecution purposes 12 1 
 
4.4. Discretionary Housing Payments 
 
4.4.1 Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) may be awarded to provide short term 

financial assistance to Housing and Council Tax Benefit claimants who are 
experiencing difficulty meeting a shortfall in their rent or Council Tax because 
maximum benefit is not being paid. 

 
4.4.2 DHP is not a payment of Housing/Council Tax Benefit and is funded separately 

from the main scheme.  The Government contribution for 2009/10 is £310,919 with 
an overall limit of £777,298 which the Authority must not exceed.  To date I have 
paid £15,361 

 
5. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
6. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1. There are none arising directly from this report. Page 50



 
8. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
12.1. None were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
13. RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1. That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
FNCE/139/09 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\5\5\9\ai00004955\coefin090701rep51.doc 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
1 JULY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
MEMBERS FINANCE TRAINING 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. It would be advantageous for Members of the Council Excellence Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee to have a good understanding of the finances of the 
Council.  This report proposes a training course for Members to be 
conducted over two sessions to achieve this aim. 

 
2. THE NECESSITY FOR TRAINING 
 
2.1. By general concensus, the finances of local government are very complex.  

Wirral Council is a large Local Authority facing significant financial pressure.  
In this situation it would be advantageous to Members of the Committee 
individually, and to the Council generally, for there to be greater 
understanding of the finances of the Council. 

 
2.2. This training would be in addition to the training being offered to Members in 

the role of scrutiny.  The training could probably be delivered over two 
sessions of two hours each. 

 
2.3. The revised Use of Resources (UOR) assessment, which forms an integral 

part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), assumes a requirement 
for Members involved in Finance to have undertaken training to enable them 
to understand the finances of the Council. 

 
3. COURSE CONTENT 
 
3.1. I recommend that the following elements be included in the course:- 
 
 (a) Funds of the Council - General Fund 
   Collection Fund 
   Capital Finance 
   Insurance Fund 
   Pension Fund 
 
 (b) Income of the Council        - Revenues Support Grant 
   Business Rates 
   Area Based Grant 
   Specific Grants 
   Fees and Charges 
   Council Tax 
   Borrowing 

Agenda Item 10

Page 53



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\5\5\9\ai00004955\coefin090701rep51.doc 

 (c) Resource Management     - Medium Term Financial Strategy 
   Annual Budget 
   Cash Flow 
   Budget Monitoring 
   Treasury Management 
 
 (d) Expenditure of the Council 
 (e) Collection Fund 
 (f) Capital Programme 
 (g) Insurance Fund 
 (h) Pension Fund 
 
 
4. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1. The financial and staffing implications will be contained within existing 

budgets. 
 
5. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES 
 
5.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
6. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 

 

6.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 

 

7.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11. RECOMMENDATION 
 
11.1. That Members agree suitable dates for the provision of this training course. 
 
 
   IAN COLEMAN 
   DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
FNCE/127/09 

Page 54



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

1 JULY 2009 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 
RISK AND RETURN - ENGLISH LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND THE ICELANDIC 

BANKS 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1 This report summarises the key messages from the Audit Commission report 

Risk and Return - English Local Authorities and the Icelandic Banks. It takes the 
recommendations of the report and evaluates how Wirral performs against each 
of them. Finally, it restates the background to the £2 million investment with 
Heritable Bank and updates Members on the latest news from the Bank 
Administrators. 

 
2. INTRODUCTION 

 

2.1 On 26 March 2009 the Audit Commission published a report on treasury 
management in Local Authorities in light of the economic downturn and the 
deposits tied up in Icelandic banks. In total 127 English Local Authorities have 
deposits of more than £953 million with Icelandic banks. 

 
2.2 Before I summarise the key messages of the Audit Commission report it is 

important to understand why Local Authorities, and in particular Wirral Council, 
has money available to make investments.  

 
2.3 The money that the Council invests is money that has been allocated for a 

particular need but is not necessarily needed today. Examples of the type of 
money that the Council has available for investments are: 

 

• Grants received from the Government to fund Council services that are 
not required immediately. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 55



 

• Reserves which are set aside for future spending plans or as a 
contingency against future funding requirements. Examples of the types 
of reserves the Council has: 

o Insurance Fund - money set aside to cover the cost of third party 
claims which are pending but yet to be settled or for future claims 
which may be made against the Council. 

o Schools Balances - money set aside by individual schools to fund 
future plans.  

o Capital Receipts - money received from the sale of Council assets 
which will be used to fund future capital schemes. 

 

• Money borrowed for capital schemes in advance of need - if the Council 
is planning a large capital project over the next few years it is prudent to 
borrow the money to fund the project at a time when interest rates are 
low which is not necessarily when the money is needed for the project. 

 
2.4 All the money which is received by the Council is not necessarily spent on the 

first day of the year but rather is spent on Council services throughout the 
financial year. Rather than just leaving money in the current account I invest the 
money until it is required so that it can earn interest for the Council. In this way 
the Council maximises the benefits of the money it receives to help fund Council 
services and lower the Council Tax requirement. 

 
3. KEY MESSAGES FROM THE AUDIT COMMISSION REPORT 

 
3.1 The Audit Commission report gave five key messages on the investment 

activities of Local Authorities. These messages were: 
 

1. Local Authorities have used interest from cash deposits as a valuable 
source of income. 

 
2. The sums of money involved are large and invested widely. On 7 

October 2008 451 Local Authorities had invested £31 billion, more than 
40% of it overseas. 

 
3. Almost 3.1% of all deposits were made in Icelandic banks. One hundred 

and twenty-seven Local Authorities held deposits, but delivery of services 
has not been affected. 

 
4. Nationally the treasury management framework is broadly right but 

weaknesses in the detail have contributed to poor practice. In particular, 
there is little recognition that the risks associated with placing deposits 
with different banks may be highly correlated because they are in the 
same group, country or sector. Additionally, Government investment 
guidance gives too much weight to credit ratings at the expense of using 
a range of information sources. 

Page 56



 
5. Local treasury management arrangements vary. The best organisations 

balance risk and reward and arrangements include: regular review and 
scrutiny of policy and procedure: appropriately trained staff and engaged 
Elected Members; and the use of a wide range of information including, 
but not limited to, credit ratings.  

 
4. CURRENT INVESTMENT POLICIES  

 
4.1 The Audit Commission found that the majority of Councils had acted properly in 

managing their investments and were alert to the risks. Wirral Council was 
visited as part of their study and is considered to have acted properly.  

 
4.2 Their report did however make a number of specific recommendations for Local 

Authorities to help strengthen investment policies and further limit the risk of 
exposure to any future banking failures. By taking each of the recommendations 
in turn current investment policies can be assessed.    

 
4.3 Recommendation 1 
4.3.1 Set the treasury management framework so that the organisation is 

explicit about the level of risk it accepts and the balance between security 
and liquidity and the yield to be achieved. At the highest level, the 
organisation should decide whether it has: 
o Appetite and capability to be able to manage risk by placing funds 

with financial institutions; or 
o No appetite and/or insufficient capability to manage the risk of 

placing funds in the market, and should instead place funds with the 
UK government’s Debt Management Office; 

 
4.3.2 Each year I report to Cabinet to set out the Treasury Management and 

Investment Strategy (Cabinet 19 March 2009 for the latest strategy statement). 
This report states that the general policy objective is to invest surplus funds 
prudently. The investment priorities are; the security and liquidity of the invested 
capital and to generate an optimum yield which is commensurate with security 
and liquidity.    
 

4.3.3 Strict minimum credit criteria are defined for counterparties with whom the 
Council will invest and these criteria have recently been tightened in light of the 
economic uncertainty. During the last quarter of 2008, when great economic 
uncertainty existed, the Council did take the decision to only invest funds with 
the Government Debt Management Office until the situation became more 
stable. This is just one example of how the Treasury Management Team, with 
the help of external advisers Arlingclose, constantly assesses risk and makes 
changes to activities, when necessary, to safeguard taxpayers money. Over the 
past three years the Treasury Management Team has generated approximately 
£12m of income from investments.  
 

Page 57



4.4 Recommendation 2 
4.4.1 Ensure that treasury management policies: 

o Follow the revised CIPFA code of practice 
o Are scrutinised in detail by a specialist committee, usually the audit 

committee, before accepted by the authority 
o Are monitored regularly 

 
4.4.2 The Council has always adhered to the CIPFA code of practice and will 

continue to adhere to any revisions that CIPFA may propose following the Audit 
Commission report. 

 
4.4.3 The treasury management and investment strategy statement is reported to 

Cabinet each year for approval.  
 
4.4.4 Treasury Management activities are monitored regularly by officers and a 

quarterly monitoring report forms part of the General Financial Matters report 
taken to the Finance and Best Value Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
4.5 Recommendation 3 
4.5.1 Ensure elected members receive regular updates on the full range of risks 

being run 
 
4.5.2 As stated above, every quarter the General Financial Matters report, taken to 

the Finance and Best Value Overview and Scrutiny Committee, includes 
updated details on the Treasury Management activities. A Treasury 
Management Annual report is reported to Cabinet at the end of each financial 
year summarising the annual performance. 
 

4.6 Recommendation 4 
4.6.1 Ensure that the treasury management function is appropriately resourced, 

commensurate with risks involved. Staff should have the right skills and 
have access to information and external advice. 

 
4.6.2 The Treasury Management Team consists of a CIPFA qualified accountant, a 

CIPFA finalist and two qualified Accounting Technicians. 
 
4.6.3 Each member of the Team attends internal training courses on treasury 

management as well as courses organised by CIPFA and Arlingclose. 
 
4.6.4 Each of the Team can speak to Arlingclose at any time for advice and all of the 

Team receive the Arlingclose e-mails with notification of any economic or 
financial changes which may require changes to investment activities. 
 

4.6.5 The achievements of the Treasury Management Team in 2008 were also 
recognised by the Local Government Chronicle (LGC) who awarded the Group 
Accountant the title of Investment Officer of the year.  
 

Page 58



4.7 Recommendation 5 
4.7.1 Train those elected members of authorities who have accountability for 

the stewardship of public money so that they are able to scrutinise 
effectively and be accountable for treasury management function 

 
4.7.2 Members receive financial training when they are first elected which includes an 

overview of the treasury management activities. Treasury management training 
for Members is included as part of the Finance training course for Members 
which I provide annually. 

 
4.8 Recommendation 6 
4.8.1 Ensure that the full range of options for managing funds is considered 

and note that early repayment of loans, or not borrowing money ahead of 
need, may reduce risks 

 
4.8.2 The Treasury Management Team, through meetings with Arlingclose, 

attendance at CIPFA courses and monitoring of all relevant marketing 
information, ensures that all options for managing funds are considered. It 
should also be noted that the current borrowing strategy has been to avoid 
borrowing money ahead of need, to limit the amount of money that is available 
for investment and thereby reduce risk.  

 
4.9  Recommendation 7 

4.9.1 Use the fullest range of information before deciding where to deposit 
funds 

 

4.9.2 The Council does not solely rely on credit ratings as a means of assessing the 
security of investments. The Council also takes into account information on 
corporate developments, market sentiment towards investment counterparties 
and any other advice at its disposal. This fact was demonstrated by the move 
away from investments in Icelandic Banks after December 2007 even though 
for most of 2008 Icelandic Banks retained a strong credit rating and received 
favourable press coverage.  

 
4.10 Recommendation 8 
4.10.1 Be clear about the role of external advisors and recognise that local 

authorities remain accountable for decisions made; 
 
4.10.2 The Treasury Management Team is clear about the relationship it has with the 

external advisors. Arlingclose provides market and economic expertise and 
information to help inform decisions.  

 
4.11 Recommendation 9 
4.11.1 Look for economies of scale by sharing resources between authorities or 

with pension funds, while maintaining separation of those funds. 
 

Page 59



4.11.2 The Treasury Management Team and the Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF) 
regularly communicate and share information and ideas about investment 
activity. MPF is an important and valued source of information and one which 
the Team will continue to use. I continue to look at ways in which sharing 
resources can create benefits but the practical differences in the types of 
business undertaken by the General Fund and the MPF and the varied 
cashflows will always dictate the separation of the funds. 
 

5. HERITABLE BANK 

 
5.1 On 30 November 2007 the Council invested £2 million with Heritable Bank, a 

UK bank but a subsidiary of the Icelandic bank Landsbanki. The investment was 
a fixed term deposit for a period (or term) of 364 days paying an interest rate of 
6.22%. At the time Heritable Bank was rated as ‘A’ by the credit ratings agency 
Fitch and was on the approved list of counterparties. The investment was also 
within the limit for investments with a single institution of £15M.  

  
5.2 Following the appointment of Arlingclose a revised counterparty list was drawn 

up on 12 December 2007 which removed all Icelandic related banks from the 
approved counterparty list. This decision was taken despite Icelandic Banks 
retaining a high credit rating and paying attractive rates of return.   

  

5.3 On 7 October 2008 Heritable Bank entered Administration, 52 days before the 
£2 million investment was due to mature on 28 November 2008. The Council 
has since submitted an insolvency claim to the Administrator of Heritable Bank, 
Ernst and Young. 

 

5.4 Ernst & Young, has begun the process of identifying and recovering assets and 
reimbursing the banks creditors, of which Wirral Council is one. It has reported 
that the assets exceed the liabilities and has forecast that a material dividend 
will be payable in the near future.  On 17 April 2009 Ernst and Young reported 
that it hoped to be able to pay 15% of amounts due in July 2009 and a minimum 
of 70% - 80% by 2012. 

 
6. CONCLUSIONS 

 
6.1 Wirral Council has acted, and continues to act, prudently and properly in all its 

investment activities. The recommendations proposed by the Audit Commission 
have already been undertaken at Wirral Council.  

 
6.2 The Treasury Management Team adds immense value to the Council both in 

financial terms, by enhancing investment income and in non financial terms, 
through the strengthening of control procedures. The findings of the Audit 
Commission and the success at the LGC awards in 2008 provide clear 
independent evidence of the excellent work. 

Page 60



 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 Approval and implementation of any recommendations following the Audit 

Commission report will further limit financial risks. 
  
8. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 

 

8.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
 
9. EQUAL OPPORTUNTIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
 
10. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
 
11. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
12. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 

 
12.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
 
13. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 

 
13.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
 
14. SOCIAL INCLUSION IMPLICATIONS 

 
14.1. There are none arising out of this report. 
  
15. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 

 
15.1 There are none arising out of this report.  

 
16. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
16.1 Risk and Return: English Local Authorities and the Icelandic Banks – Audit 

Commission, March 2009. 
 
16.2 Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2009 to 2012 – March 2009 
 
16.3 Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services – CIPFA 2002 

Page 61



 
17. RECOMMENDATION 

 

17.1 That Members note the Audit Commission conclusion that the Council acted, 
and continues to act, properly in the management of its investments. 

 
 
 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
 
 
FNCE/126/09 

Page 62



Agenda Item 15

Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 02/04/2009 Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 16/04/2009 Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 24/03/2009 Finance and Best Value Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	4 Terms of Reference
	6 Financial Monitoring Statement
	7 Projected Budget 2010 - 2011
	8 Budget Projections 2011 - 2014
	9 General Financial Matters
	10 Members Finance Training
	11 Risk and Return - Icelandic Banks
	15 Computer Equipment Maintenance
	16 Sun Microsystems Maintenance

